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1873.

NEW ZEALAND.

IMMIGRATION AND PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE,
(REPORT OF THE, ON PETITION OF MESSRS. J. BROGDEN AND SONS).

Baport brought up and ordered to be printed, 21t7i September.

OEDEES OF EEFEEENCE.
Extractsfrom the Journals of the House of Representatives.

Wednesday, the 17th day op July, 1873.
Ordered,That a Select Committee,to consist of thirteen members, be appointedto consider and report upon all matters

affectin" Public "Works and Immigration that may bereferred to it by this House. That such Committee consist of Mr.
Carrington, Mr. Curtis, tho Hon. Mr. Fitzherbort,Mr. Gillies, Mr. Johnston, Mr. Macandrew, Mr. O'Neill, the Hon. Mr.
O'Korke,Mr. C. Parker, Mr. Reeves, Mr. Eolleston, Mr. White, and the mover; five to be a quorum. {Eon. Mr.
Richardson).

Feiday, the 18in day of July, 1873.
Ordered,That the name ofMr. Cuthbertson be added to tho Public Works and Immigration Committee. (Eon, Mr.

Richardson.)
Wednesday, the 27th day oe August, 1873.

Ordered, That the number of the Public Works and Immigration Committee be increased to fourteen,and that the
namo of Mr. Ormondbe added thereto. (Son. Mr. Richardson.)

The Public Works and Immigration Committee, to which the Petition of Messrs. John Brogden and
Sons was referred, have the honor to report that the petitioners pray to bo relieved from loss to which
theyallege they havebeen subjected under their immigration contract with the Government. The Com-
mittee having taken all the evidenco that was available to them on the subject of the claims put forward
in the petition, are of opinion that the statements in the said petition are not substantiated, and, so
far as they are able to judge, there is no good groundfor such claim, either in law or in equity.

The Committee are further of opinion that, in the absence of proof, it would bo a bad precedent
to entertain claims founded upon vague allegations, and the admission of which would doawaywith all
finality in a system of public contracts under written agreements; and that, further, in the opinion of
the Committee, it is not desirable the evidence should bo printed.

W. Eeeves,
24th September, 1873. . Chairman.

MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS.

Monday, Bth September, 1873.
Committee metpursuant to notice.

Pbesent ;

Mr. Carrington, Mr. Ormond,
Mr. Curtis, Hon. Mr. O'Eorke,
Hon. Mr. Etzherbert, Mr. Parker,
Mr. Gillies, Mr. Beeves,
Mr. Macandrew, Hon. Mr. Eichardson,
Mr. O'Neill, Mr. White.

Minutes of former meetingread and confirmed.
Petition ofMessrs. J. Brogdon and Sons read. ,„.;,. t.
After some discussion on the subject, it was ordered that Messrs. Henderson and Billing be sum-

moned for Tuesday, 9th September, at 11 a.m.
The Committee then adjourned till 10.30 a.m. on Tuesday, 9th September.

X—l. 5.
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Tuesday, 9tii September, 1873.
Committee met pursuant to notice.

Present:
Mr. Carrington, Mr. Ormond,
Mr. Curtis, Hon. Mr. O'Eorke,
Mr. Cuthbertson, Mr. Parker,
Hon. Mr. Fitzherbcrt, Mr. Reeves,
Mr. Macandrew, Hon. Mr. Richardson,
Mr. O'Neill, Mr. White.

Minutes of former meeting read and confirmed.
The Hon. Mr. O'Rorke put in correspondencebetween the Hon. Ministerfor Immigration and the

firm of J. Brogden and Sons, together with an extract"from a letterto the Hon. Ministerfor Immigra-
tionfrom the Agent-General (vide Appendix A), which were read.

Mr. J. Henderson handed in a promissory note and other documents, &c, referred to in his evi-
dence (vide Appendix B).

On the motion of Mr. Ormond, the Committee adjourned till 11 a.m. onFriday, when the report
on the petition will be considered.

Feiday, 12th September, 1873.
Committee mot pursuant to notice

Present :
Mr. Carrington, Mr. Ormond,
Mr. Curtis, Mr. Parker,
Mr. Cuthbertson, Mr. Reeves,
Hon. Mr. Fitzherbert, Hon. Mr. Richardson,
Mr. Macandrew, Mr. White.
Mr. O'Neill,

Minutes of former meeting read and confirmed.
Resolved, on the motion of Mr. Macandrew, That the Committee do now adjourn till 11 a.m. on

Monday, 15th September, when Mr. Billing be desired to attend, in accordance with his wish to give
evidence.

Monday, 15th September, 1873.
Committee metpursuant to notice.

Peesent:
Mr. Carrington, Mr. Ormond,
Mr. Curtis, Mr. Parker,
Hon. Mr. Fitzhcrbert, Mr. Reeves,
Mr. Gillies, Hon. Mr. Richardson,
Mr. Macandrew, Mr. Rolleston,
Mr. O'Neill, Mr. White.
Hon. Mr. O'Rorko,

Minutes offormer meeting read and confirmed.
Mr. Billing in attendance, and gavo cvidonco with referenco to Messrs. Brogdon's petition. (Vide

evidence.)
The Committee adjourned till 16thSeptember, at 11 a.m.,when Messrs. Henderson and Carruthers

were directed to be summoned to give evidence.

Tuesday, IGth September, 1873.
Committee met pursuant to notice

Present :

Mr. Carrington, Mr. Ormond,
Mr. Curtis, Mr. Parker,
Hon. Mr. Fitzherbert, Mr. Reeves,
Mr. Gillies, Hon. Mr. Richardson,
Mr. Macandrew,' Mr. Eolleston,
Mr. O'Neill, Mr. White.
Hon. Mr. O'Rorke,

Minutes of former meeting read and confirmed.
Mr. John Henderson in attendance, and re-examined with reference to Messrs. Brogden and Sons'

petition. (Vide evidence.)
Mr. John Carruthers in attendance, and gave evidence.
On the motion of Mr. Gillies, the considerationof the report was postponed to Friday, 19th inst.
The Committee adjourned till Wednesday, at 11 a.m.
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Wednesday, 17th Septembee, 1873.
Committee metpursuant to notice.

Peesent:
Mr. Carrington, Mr. Parker,
Mr. Curtis, Mr. Eeeves,
Mr. Macandrew, Hon. Mr. Eichardson,
Mr. O'Neill, Mr. Eolleston.
Mr. Ormond,

As Mr. Eeoves was to give evidence, on the motion of Mr. Macandrew Mr. Curtis was appointed
Chairman for the present meeting.

Minutes of former meeting read and confirmed.
Be Petition of Brogden and Sons,—The Hon. Mr. Eichardson gaveevidence. (Videevidence.)
Mr. Ormond gave evidence. (Videevidence.)
Mr. Eeeves gave evidence. (Vide evidence.)
The Hon. Mr. O'Eorko was ordered to be requested to attend on Friday to give evidence.
The Committee then adjourned.

Friday, 19th Septembee, 1873.
Meeting postponed by order.

Monday, 22nd Septembee, 1873.
Committee met pursuant to notice.

Peesent :
Mr. Carrington, Mr. Ormond,
Mr. Curtis, Mr. Parker,
Mr. Cuthbertson, Mr. Eecves,
Mr. Gillies, Hon. Mr. Eichardson,
Mr. Macandrew, Mr. Eolleston,
Mr. O'Neill, Mr. White.
Hon. Mr. O'Eorke,

Minutes of previous meeting road and confirmed.
Mr. Carruthers in attendance, and corrected his evidence.
The Chairman read a letter he had received from Mr. Billing, enclosing a letter dated 21st

December, 1872, from Messrs. Brogden to the Agent-General, which was read and ordered to be
appended to his evidence.

All evidence given before the Committee read over.
The Hon. Mr. O'Eorke gave evidence. (Vide evidence.)
Mr. Macandrew gave notice of the following motion:—" Inasmuch as the evidence before tlie

Committee clearly shows that in fixing the prices to be paid to Messrs. Brogden and Sons for the
various works undertaken by them, provision was made to cover contingencies, in respect of which the
claim of the petitioners is based, the Committee is of opinion that there is no good ground for said
claim, either at law or in equity."

The Committee then adjourned till Tuesday, 23rd September, at 11 a.m.

"Wednesday, 24th Septembee, 1873.
Committee met pursuant to notice.

Peesent:
Mr. Carrington, Hon. Mr. O'Eorko,
Mr. Cuthbcrtson, Mr. Parker,
Mr. Fitzherbert, Mr. Eolleston,
Mr. Macandrow, Hon. Mr. Eichardson,
Mr. O'Neill, Mr. Beeves,
Mr. Ormond, Mr. White.

Minutes of former meetingread and confirmed.
The Committee proceeded to consider the report on Messrs. Brogden's petition.
Mr. Macandrew withdrew the motion of which lie had given notice at the last meeting.
Mr. Carrington moved, That the Committee having considered the evidence before it, and

the statements made in Mr. Alexander Brogden's letters of 21st December, 1872, and the 10th July,
1873, addressed to the Agent-General, are of opinion that no just decision can be arrived at until the
said letters of 21st December, 1872, and 10th July, 1873, are answered by the Agent-General.

The Committee divided, when there were,—
Ayes, 2. Noes, 8.

Mr. Carrington, Mr. Cuthbertson,
Mr. O'Neill. Mr. Macandrew,

Hon. Mr. O'Eorke,
Mr. Ormond,
Mr. Parker,
Hon. Mr. Eichardson,
Mr. Eolleston,
Mr. White.
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So the motion was lost.
Mr. Eolloston moved, That the Committee having taken all the evidence that was available to

them on the subject of the claims put forward in the petition of Messrs. Brogden and Sons, are of
opinion that the statements in the said petition are not substantiated, and, so far as they areable to
judge, there is no good ground for such claims, either in law or equity. The Committee are further
of opinion that in the absence of proof it would be a bad precedent to entertain claims founded
u.pon vague allegations, and the admission of which would do away with all finality in a system
of public contracts under written agreement.

The Committee divided, when there were,—
Ayes, 8. Noes, 2.

Mr. Cuthbertson, Mr. Carrington,
Mr. Macandrew, Mr. O'Neill.
Mr. Ormond,
Hon. Mr. O'Eorke,
Mr. Parker,
Hon. Mr. Eichardson,
Mr. Eolleston,
Mr. White.

So the motion was carried.
Resolved, On the motion of the Hon. Mr. Eichardson, That, in the opinion of this Committee, it

is not advisable that the evidence should be published.
The Chairman was requested to report to the House on the petition in accordance with the above

Eesolutions.
On the motion of the Hon. Mr. O'Eorke, the Petition ofTeoti Eapatini was further postponed.
The Committee then adjourned sine die.

MINUTES OF EVIDENCE.

Tuesday, 9th Septembee, 1873.
Mi\ John Hendeeson, of Messrs. Brogdeu and Sons, was in attendance, and was examine d as

follows:—
1. The Cliainnan.~\ The Committee have under consideration a petition from your firm relative to

the liabilities they have entered into in regard to the business of immigration. We understand that it
is your wish that you should be called upon to give evidence. Perhaps you would make a statement
of what you have got to say, after which it willbe open for the members of Committee to question you
on the subject?—All the statement I have got to make is embodied in the petition to the House.

2. Son. Mr. FitzJierbert.'] Have the Messrs. Brogden and Sons taken all the steps that they
reasonably could be expected to take for recovery of these promissory notes?—So far as I know they
have done so. Of course many of the menby whom these notes were given have left our employment
and gone out of the way into the interior, in which case it might possibly entail more cost than the
value of the notes to follow them up. In not a few cases the men have changed their names.

3. Let me ask, what steps have you taken to trace out the men who have gone away? There are
police in the country, besides a variety ofways a private firm would adopt for therecovery ofdebts due
to them under similar circumstances?—We have left no means untried, so far as local agencies are
concerned.

4. Have you any complaints to make against the police arrangements in consequence of which
payment has been evaded ?—None whatever. In many instances we are unable to trace the men.
They leave here, for example, and go to Auckland, where they change their names, and many of them
set to work on the way up.

5. In a country like this, it appears to me that if I had £20,000 or £30,000 out in small sums,
there would not be so very much difficulty in tracing the persons out by whom these sums were
owing?—There are other difficulties in the way of recovering these sums. The menmay not have the
money to pay them even after they are sued; and if we have them arrested and put into gaol, we have
to pay 10s. a week for keeping them there.

(3. Why then do you not adopt a course like this : Sue them, andafter having confessed judgment,
hold it overto such time as these men become worth powder and shot?—We do so in many instances.

7. I would wish you to explain more fully why that course is not adopted in every instance ?—lt
is adopted in every case in which we have found the men.

8. Why do you not adopt that course before the men leave you. When you have reason to
suspect that they areabout to leave, why do you not do that before they escape ?—ln many, very many
of these cases, the men leave us without giving us notice of their intention to do so, and then make their
way direct into the interior.

9. Is there no other reason why you do not sue them all ?—ln many instances it would not pay
to sue them.

10. What is the cost of suing for amounts like these ?—I do not rememberthe cost, but I could
get it if it is considered necessary.

11. How many judgments have you got in that way?—l cannot say from memory, but I can
furnish you with the number by to-morrow.
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12. Generally, have your firm done all it thought it could do for recovery of these debts ?—lt has.
13. If you had done more, you think it would have been throwing away good moneyafter bad ?—

I have no doubt at all but it would.
li. Have you been deterredfrom prosecuting these claims to the utmost by any consideration of

kindness ?—None whatever. Wo have dealt with it as a business matter all through.
15. Can you state any general term of the defence set up against payment of the notes ?—

In some cases the defence was that the notes were illegal. In others, as in the case of Invercargill,
they were thrown out because the magistrate held that there was no person to represent the firm.

16. Different judgments were given in the different cases ?—Yes; different judgments were given
in different localities.

17. In any case was there any refusal to pay on the alleged ground that value had not been
received by the immigrant ?—They invariably alleged that they had been brought out under false
pretences, more especially as immigrants were brought out for £7 by the Government, whereas they
were charged £15. That was a great cause of complaint.

18. Was that set up as a special ground of their refusal to pay ?—Yes, in nearly every instance.
They represented that Brogden had charged them more thanthey could have come out for under the
Government, and that they would not pay Brogden a single shilling more. They most distinctly
evaded payment on that account.

19. Those that have paid you, have they been forced to do so?—Some have paid voluntarily, and
others have been forced to pay.

20. How do you account for that difference; is it merely attributable to a difference of their
moral character ?—ln most instances those who paid voluntarily are those who had not come into con-
tact with the men who were out here before them.

21. You set forth in the petition that 219 men still remain in your employment. Do you
experience any difficulty in regard to these men ?—None whatever. They are, however, becoming
weekly less in number.

22. The Chairman.'] I wish to ask you whether you arc not aware that Mr. James Brogden made
his firm in London awarethathe considered it disadvantageous to enter into a contract for immigration
on such terms as were under consideration between them and the Agent-General?—Yes; I believe
he did.

23. Therefore it follows that the firm in London entered into the contract with its eyes open ?—
No ; the Agent-General led them to believe that there would bo no difficulty in collecting the money;
and he authorized them to make a charge of £15, so as to coverany loss.

2i. You were present yourself with Mr. James Brogden at several long interviews that took
place with the Resident Minister for the Middle Island when the earlier contracts for railway works
were being discussed and the terms considered?—Yes.

25. Do you notremember that the consideration of the difficulties that the firm would certainly
have to encounterin obtaining a sufficient supply of labour at reasonable rates formed avery important
elementin the terms granted by the Government to the firm. I wish you clearly to understand me:
I mean that the probable rates of labour were urged on the part of the firm as a reason for
considerably more liberality being granted by the Government?—That was one reason why we were
anxious to bring out men uj)on the same terms as they were brought out by the Government. Other-
wisewe would have employed labour from a much cheaper market. Wo were desirous of bringing out
men that would be useful, not only to ourselves,but likewise to the Colony. Had it been otherwise,
we would have got men from another quarter altogether.

26. The bearing of my question is this : All these considerations with regard to the cost and the
difficultyof obtaining a supply of labour, including the cost the firm would beput to in getting labour
from Great Britain orelsewhere, were fullyurged by you in the conduct of these negotiations, and put
forward as a demand on the part of the firm, and admitted as afair and reasonable claim for more
liberal terms than would otherwise have been asked ?—Yes ; they were.

27. Son. Mr. liicJiarchon.] Aro the promissory notes for thepassage-moneyand the outfit all put
together?—We take these notes from the head of afamily, all the membersof the familybeing included
in the one note; and also a note from the single meu for their amounts. The one promissory note
includes passage money and everything else.

28. Did you take legal advice about the legality of these notes ?—Yes, and the advice we got
was that they were not very sure. There would be some difficulty in proving the signatures. In view
of that, we wanted to get a short Bill passed to make them valid as debts here.

29. Then you took advice out here ?—We did.
30. And what do you mean was the nature of that advice; was it to the effect that the notes

were valid or not ?—lt was not very definite. We were advised that it would be better to get the
men to re-sign the noteswhen they came out here.

31. Under your agreementwith the men, how were you to be refunded the amountsyou had
advanced?—The agreement was that we were to stop so much money per week.

32. Do you consider that it is advantageous to the country, your having introduced 1,700 men
into it as labourers ?—Yes, unquestionably it is, at our cost.

33. Put the question of cost aside ; is it your opinion that they have affected the labour market?
—'Yes; to this extent that it has provided the settlers with a good many agricultural labourers. In
one case some 92 men arrived at Invercargill, and two months afterwards, when I visited the place, I
found only one man employed upon our works; all the others had been absorbed by the pablic of
Invercargill. In Invercargill, although a distinct promise was made thatour men would notbe taken
away from us, on the morning of the arrival there of our immigrants in the " Zealandia" I found that
some 30 had been engaged by the inhabitants before 12 o'clock noon.

34. Yes, but surely that was a question of wages, was it not?—No, it was an endeavour on their
part to get quit of their promissory notes.

35. Did you trace these men that got away from you in Invercargill ?—We traced a few of them;
we have some cases against them—some six or eight cases pending against them.
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3G. Mr. G'Neill.'] When did your firm commence sending out immigrants ?—On 18thApril, 1872,
arriving at Wellington on 9th July.

37. "When was the last shipment sent out?—They arrived by the " Luttenvorth " in March, at
Port Chalmers.

38. Was that the last shipment ?—Yes.
39. Son. Mr. O'Rorke.'] Are you acquainted with the terms upon which the Agent-General

sent out immigrants between the month of June last year and the date of the arrival in Otago of the
" Lutterworth " ?—I knew that in one instance, for a period-of three weeks, ho sent out men free. At
the expiry of that three weeks they wore charged £10 payable by promissory note, and £5 cash.

40. What I want to know is, are you acquainted with the regulations in force between the month
of June, and the date whenthe "Lutterworth " was despatchedto Otago ?—No.

41. You state in the first paragraph of your petition, " That, amongst other things, your petitioners
had no reason to believe that the terms upon which the Government of the Colony would carry on
emigration thereto during the term of the said agreementwould vary, as regards the money payments
to bo paid by emigrants, from those which were then in force, and which were the same as those
established by your petitioners for the emigrants to be sent out to the Colony pursuant thereto."
What is the differencereferred to there?—I do not remember just now.

42. Are you aware if the Agent-General ever charged a sum of £15?—No, I am not aware.. 43. Are the Immigration Eegulations in force between February, 1872, and March, 1873, the same
as yours, as is alleged by thepetition?—No, they arendt.

44. You also allege in paragraph 5 of the petition, "Thatimmediately after the making of the said
agreementwith your petitioners, the Agent-General altered the terms upon which ho was sending
immigrants to the Colony." Do you adduce proof in support of that allegation?—The allegation is
founded oninformation received from home; and further, I have already mentioned that during a period
of three weeks he carried on a system of free passages.

45. I think you ought to state in what month that occurred ?—I can give you the month. It
lasted from the 3rd to tlie 14th of March, 1873.

46. You further state in your petition, that " the works intrusted to your petitioners have not
been sufficient to employ the number of persons who have actually been sent out by them; and in
many cases, on the arrival of the immigrants in New Zealand, your petitioners were compelled to incur
great expense in maintaining them temporarily, although your petitioners had no work upon which
they could give thememployment." In the case of the arrival of immigrants, by what vessel was that
the case?—The " Jessie Beadman," I know for one.

47. At that time had you no works upon which to employ them ?—No. The contract for the
Upper Hutt line was thenpending, and our tender was refused to us afew days afterwards.

48. Could you not have put them on the Lower Hutt line ?—No. We had sufficient men on that
line at that time.

49. Then let me ask how did you employ them temporarily ?—They were employed through the
Provincial Government.

50. Then the Provincial Government is indebted to you, is it not ?—This is a matter of arrange-
ment.

51. Have you failed in many cases to recover the amounts due to you ?—ln.several cases, perhaps
one-third of them.

52. Where were these cases tried ?—At Invercargill, Auckland, Picton, Wellington, Oamaru, and
Napier.

53. Mr. Carrington.~\ Do you consider that the difficulty in many instances was so great,and the
expenses so heavy, as to make their recovery little or no gain ?—I think I have mentioned before that
the legal expenses and costs already incurred exceedwhat wo have recovered from tho men.

54. Mr. Macanclrew~\ Have you any idea how many men have left the Colony indebted to your
firm ?—I have ho idea. We only hear of it occasionally from their mates.

55. Upon what grounds do these men leavetho Colony?—Upon the one ground of evading payment
of these notes.

50. What rate of wages doyou pay your men ?—We pay from Gs. to Bs. per day for labourers.
57. Have you not paid some of your men as low as ss. per day ?—We started a few in Auckland

at that rate, but it only lasted a couple of weeks.
58. What amount of these notes arrived at maturity do you now hold unpaid ?—By special

arrangement tho notes are to be repaid by instalments.
59. The Chairman.'] Have you any idea how many men have left tho Colony ?—I have not.
60. Mr. Macandrew.~\ How many hours do your men workper day ?—lt depends upon the locality.

Some work nine, some ten,and others only eight. Many of the menwho worknine hours are what is
called piece-men. The day-men never work more than nine hours, and a great many of them work
only eight.

61. Hon. Mr. FUzherbert.~] The only mode you have of recovering these notes is by stopping the
amounts out of their wages ?—Yes.

62. From the experience you have obtained, do you not think that it would be more easy to
recover these notes were they made payable upon demand ?—I question very much if you would get
mento come out on these conditions.

63. If these notes were taken payable on demand, you would save the difficulty of having to delay
proceedings until they came to maturity. When you saw a tendency on thepart of the men to leave,
you wrould be in aposition to have them brought up before the Court and get judgment against them
at once ?—Perhaps so ; but there arevery many of these men who leave without giving the slightest
notice of their intention to do so.

64. Was it any part of your arrangementwith the Government that these notes should be drawn
in a particular form ?—No, it was left wholly for the firm to decide upon.

65. Tho firm might, ifit had been so disposed, have made tho notespayable on demand ?—Yes, so
far as I am aware.
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66. The Hon. Mr. O'Rorlee.] Have you seen tho letter from Messrs. John Brogden and.Sons,
offering to compromise the matterwith tho Agent-General ?—Tes.

67. How many male adultshave been brought outby your firm ?—1,291, exclusive of boys.
68. You state that only 219 of that number have entered into your employment?—That is an

error. It should bo only 219 were in our employment at the date thepetition was presented.
69. What is the greatest number you ever had in your employment at any one time, I mean of

the men brought out by you?—l should say not more than 1,000 at any one time.
70. What amount have you recovered in all ?—Tho amount recovered to the 10th of July was

£2,214.
71. Docs that include the amounts you havo recovered through the Court ?—Yes, it includes all

the money we havereceived.
72. Did you ever allow any of your men to enter into the service of others under a specific

understanding ?—No, I am not aware of that having been done except in a few cases.
73. Are you aware of a similar arrangement having been sanctioned in any other part of the

Colony besides these to which you havo referred ?—No, Iam not.
74. Hon. Mr. Fitzheruert.] Did I understand you to say that it was out of regard to the

General Government, and for tho advantage of the Colony, that you brought out the class of immi-
grants you do, and that otherwise you would havo got cheaper labour elsewhere ?—Yes, we would
have brought men from Australia. We should also have got Chinese. All the men sent out were
passed by the Government Agent.

75. These you would have got cheaper but for your desire to kill two birds with one stone. You
allege thatas being an outcome of the loss you havo sustained, or at least a considerable part of it ?—
Yes.

76. The Chairman.'] I understand you to say that you might have bettered yourself by the intro-
duction of Chinese labour from Australia ?—Yes.

77. According to the terms of your original contract, were you not debarredfrom employing such
labour ?—I do not think so, but lam not aware. 1believe it was proposed to insert it in tho original
draft contract.

78. Mr. Macandrew.'] Has Chinese labour notbeen employed by you to some extent?—Yes, they
havo been employed on our works as sub-contractors.

79. Mr. O'Neill.'] Are you expecting any more immigrants under your contract?—None
whatever.

Monbat, IStii Septeheee, 1873.
Mr. James Billing was in attendance, and was examined as follows:—

80. The Chairman."] I received a letter from you, Mr. Billing, in which you requested that you
might bo called by the Committee to give evidence on behalf of your firm. You are probably prepared
with some statement. Ifso, the Committee is now ready to hear you ?—My object in asking to be
called as a witness was in order that I might be enabled to make a statement in reference to the corre-
spondence which passed between the firm at home and its representatives here on the subject of immi-
gration. That correspondence will show you that immigration was entered into and carried on for a
period extending from March to Juno in the year 1872, on a verbal understandingbetween the Agent-
General and Messrs. Brogden; at all events, five ships with emigrants were sent out by the Messrs.
Brogden, on the understanding that the immigrants sent out would not involve tho firm in liability.
These five ships sailed before the firm had any knowledge whatever, either by letter or telegram, that
Mr. James Brogden, the representative of the firm then in New Zealand, had not succeeded in making
terms with the Government for tho construction of railways in tho Colony. Tho first letter to which
I will refer you is dated 7th March, 1872, from Mr. Alexander Brogden to hisbrother in New Zealand,
That was during tho period the negotiations were going on here between Mr. James Brogdeu and the
Government, so that it was not possible that their prospects of success or otherwise could have been
known at that time to the firm at home. The extract reads as follows :—" Unfortunately your letter
did not convey to us the idea that we had to take up the negotiation with Dr. Foatherston, or that
there had been such an advance in the negotiation with you as the preparation of a draft agreement.
In future, bo good enough to send us copies of such drafts, as they instruct us as to the phases and
progress of matters. We shall arrange with Dr. Peatherston on the basis of our undertaking tho
liability of the passage money with the Government, much in the sameway as proposed in the draft
agreemontcovering ourselves with engagements with tho men, and stipulating also that in the ' cost
price' of the work there shall be added a sufficient sum to cover losses from defaulting persons. The
Government will have to advance the money and be repaid by instalments, and wo shall deduct a
proportionate part of the weekly wages under our formal engagement with tho men, and have also in
the prices an allowancefor the loss which will probably occur. The item of cost must be settled by
you and Henderson, and should be added as the losses occur."

81. Mr. T. B. Gillies.~] At what date was that letter received in the Colony ?—lt was received on
the 2Gth of May, 1872. The next letter I will refer to is one dated 4th April, addressed by
Mr. Alexander Brogden to Mr. James Brogden.

82. And that letter would be received in June?—lt was received also on 26th May, both mails
arriving at same time, owing to detention in America. That letter is as follows :—" Mr. Noble has
written to you "—Mr. Noble, I may explain, is secretary for the firm at home—"about our efforts
and success in the matter of immigration. I will confine myself to state tho position of the
negotiations. After receiving the copy of the agreement which it was proposed you should enter into,
we discussed tho question several times with Dr. Featherston, and, as I mentioned in my last letter,
he proposed that the Government should pay the passage, and we repay them by instalments, less
25 per cent, to cover loss, which the Government would boar. "We have proposed and arranged
verbally with tho Agent-General that we act upon these terms, keeping a strict ledger account of the
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cost actually incurred in the emigration, and we will see how the account rectifies itself by the
repayments recovered from the men's promissory notes; and if any modification of the arrangement
is applied for, it must be justified by a reference to the accounts—the intention being that we are to
bo reimbursed the cost, but not to make profit or suffer loss by it; so that on your side you will
have to keep strict accounts of everything which you disburserelating to emigration, and furnish the
particulars to us hero or obtain repayment at the Colony. On the other hand, you will not havo the
necessity of adding anything on this item to the cost of the works. Probably there may be some
expense connected with the landing and removal of the emigrants to tho place they are required,
which will be doubtful as to which account they should go to; but this you ought to get settled
in principle to start with; and as we cannot know the details of such expenses,we must leave that
with you. "We shall furnish you by next mail, and also send out with tho ship, copies of each man's
engagementand his indebtedness ; and as there are some married men whose wives remain at home
and to whom we pay weekly subsist, we shall require to be furnished each mail with a copy of the
pay sheet, at least as far as relates to the emigrants we send out and the amounts they are
reimbursing. We find we shall havo to pay nearly everything with the great bulk of the labourers,
and shall havo to depend upon your watchfulness on that side for getting the moneyback. At the
same time we must impress upon you, and beg you will do the same to tho different agents, the
absolute necessity of seeing that the emigrants are well looked to on their arrival; have lodgings and
food provided for them, so that all may go along well, and good reports may come home from them ;
if bad accounts come home, wo shall fail to get more emigrants ; it is not an easy matter here, we
assure you. There are many men among those going out who will make good gangers, and the
Emigrant Agent (Mr. Carter) says that they are a very superior body of men. Referring again to
the emigrants, we have promised to commence paying their wages the day they land in New
Zealand, so that you will havo to havo work prepared for them or they will be a dead loss on your
hands ; and of course we must always remember that the obligation to employ is just as binding upon
us as the obligation to serve is upon them. "Wages : Then as to wages, you will see we have stipulated
a minimum wage of ss. per day; and of course if higher wages prevail they will expect more. In this
respect we need onlybe clear in our explanations to you of what wo have undertaken and promised, to
insure your seeing it strictly carried out."

Witness.] Tho next letterto which I will refer is dated 27th June of the same year, 1572.
83. Hon. Mr. Fitzhcrlert.] The last letter was dated in April, and this is in June. Had you

no letterson tho subject during the month of May?—No ; wo had letters, but none affecting this
question.

Witness.] The letter of27th Junereads :—"Emigration: Enclosed you have copy of an agree-
ment signed by us to-day; duplicate goeswith my signature and Henry's attached, and you will have
to sign it when presented. "We have made it as strongly referring to the contract for works, and as
much connected with that contract, as Dr. Peathorston's powers permitted. You have had particulars
of the emigrants sent out; and their promissory notes having been also sent to you, you will have to
organize the employment of these men and the collection of the moneys from them at once, so that no
delay or difficulty may arise. We shall no doubt have to continue the dcspatcli of emigrants, and the
Agent-General tells me that very favourable reports have gone from here of the way in which we are
carrying out the scheme, and the good class of emigrants we are selecting, You will now have to
arrange sufficient work for the men, or else you must pay them their daily wages in accordance with
our agreementwith them. AYe cannot have anybreach of faith with the emigrants charged against us.
You can very properly represent this to the authorities as a reason for greater speed in their
arrangements with you."

Tho witness continued : These men were sent out upon the advice that sufficient work would be
obtained, and in good faith and reliance upon the Agent-General's assurance that no loss would
bo connected with the transaction. AVhen tho agreement came to be signed, the Agent-General told
us that it was not possible that there could be any loss. Tho word the firm at home had at this time was
that contracts were about to be entered into. The next letter to which I willrefer is dated July 25th.
It says:—" In addition to the men's wives and families already sent, of which we have forwarded full
particulars, it has been arranged to send out 50 men in tho ' Lady Jocelyn,' which sails for Canter-
bury on the 31st instant; and 150 to 200 in the ' Christian McAusland,' which will sail on the
3rd September for Otago. Extract from telegram from Colonial Secretary to Agent-General, dated
"Wellington, Bth June, 1872, and received here last Thursday : 'Brogden's tender for Picton and
Blenheim accepted. Invercargill to Mataura, Napier to Paki Paki, "Wellington to Hutt, and Auckland
to AVaikato, will be tendered for in a fortnight.' " Up to this date five vessels, carrying nearly 700
emigrants, had left England for Messrs. Brogden, and this telegram was the first intimation they had
had that works had been provided for them. Tho understanding upon which these menhad been sent
was, that the firm would neithermake aprofit nor suffer a loss.

84. The Chamnan.~\ You mean that this was the first intimation thathad been received of works
having been absolutely contracted for ?—Yes.

85. Hon. Mr. FitzJierbert.] You have told us that the Agent-General assured Messrs. Brogden
that no possible loss would arise from the despatch by them of immigrants. Have you any letters from
the Agent-General to show that he gave such an assurance to the Messrs. Brogden ? Ipresume it was
given to the firm at home ?—Yes. The letters of 18th September and Ist November, 1872, and 12th
June, 1573, show that that assurance was given.

86. The Chairman.'] Prom whom were those letters received ?—Prom our firm at homo.
Witness then read the following extract from letter dated 18th September, 1872, written by

Mr. Noble to him (witness) :—" I have had some talk with Mr. Carter, the Government Immigration
Agent, who thinks the difficulties greatly exaggerated. His experience as a contractor in New
Zealand is, that if the men are well treated you will find the difficulties vanish. He says there is no
other work for them in New Zealand."

Witness: I now wish to refer to the draft agreement that was sent out as having been entered
into between the firm and the A gent-General. A very remarkable note appears on the margin of that
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agreement, made by Mr. AlexanderBrogden. The note is written opposite the following paragraph in
the draft: "Andwhereas the Governor and the contractors have entered into arrangements for tho
execution by the contractors, in New Zealand, of railway and other works, in reliance upon which
being carried out, and with a viewto the execution of which works, the contractors havo selected and
sent out to the said Colony men suitable to be employed on the said works, with their families, and are
desirous of sending out other such men, and have applied to the Agent-General on behalf of the
Government to co-operate with them to effect this object, on the terms and conditions hereinafter
mentioned, which the Agent-General on such behalf has agreed to do." The marginal note is to the
following effect: " This is put in the recital as the Agent-General has no power to enter into a specific
contract that we shall have works to do; but this sufficiently indicates the purpose of the emigrants,
and would be a moral obligation on the Government cither to give the work to execute or relieve us
from the obligations we have entered into.—A.8."

Witness :In a letter from the firm, dated Ist November, 1872, the writer says :—" Your brother
saw Dr. Featherston yesterday, but he will not release them from any portion of the emigration agree-
ment; not even giving his consent to a suspension of operations, as he says that we are now prevent-
ing him from getting emigrants. He says that there is ample margin allowed in tho difference
between the £10 paid him and the £15 we can charge to cover any possible loss, and he backs up the
statement by his own personal experience. Finding that nothing could be done with the Agent-
General, your brothers have resolved to stop any further emigration after the sailing of the vessel,
which is fixed for the 12thNovember."

Witness : I now come to the letter of 12th Juno of this year,from our firm to the Agent-General,
asking to be released from our obligationsunder the immigration scheme. You are no doubt probably
well acquainted with the contents of that letter; which was road as follows:—
" Sir,— "5, Queen's Square, AVestminster, S.AV., 12th June, 1873.

"At the invitation of the Minister, tho Hon. G. Maurice O'Rorke, conveyed to our Mr.
James Brogden in New Zealand by letter of November, 1872, and in compliance with your letter of
27th May last, we address you on the subject of the agreement of 27th June, 1872, between the
Governor of New Zealand and ourselves, relative to tho promotion of immigration into the Colony.

" The negotiations on this subject commenced, as you will remember, in New Zealand, between
Mr. James Brogden and the Ministry there; and the continuance of themrelegated to you and the
members of our firm in England. At that time tho postal arrangements from the Colony were very
irregular, and we received intimationfrom our firm that the subject was so remitted to us, but without
any further particulars. You will doubtlessremember that the draft agreementfor emigration, which
had been discussed in the Colony, was handed to us by you, and you informed us that it had in fact
very nearly been signed byour Mr. James Brogden, but at the last moment he had declined to take the
responsibility, and so the subject was remitted home. At the same time you urged us with so great
pressure to commence sending out immigrants, that even before any agreement was made with you we
had already sent out a considerable nnmbor, and were actively at work in the necessary organization in
different parts of the country.

" AYe wish here to observe that we had no desire to enter into this undertaking; it was at the
request of the Government in New Zealand and of yourselfhero that we did so, and from the first we
informed you thatwe looked for no profit, but only sought to be covered against any loss. The terms
we sought to arrange with you were similarinprinciple to those negotiated with Mr. A^ogel inEngland
for the No. 1 contract, andrequired that we should keep accurate accounts of the moneys expended,
and of the repayments received from the emigrants, that at the expiration of the time the accounts
should be adjusted and settled upon the basis of repaying actual outlay. We sent out emigrants in
several of the early ships, as wo supposed upon this understanding, and informed our firm in New
Zealand that there would be therefore no necessity to consider, in settling the prices of work, any cost
or loss arising from the emigration. To this you objected that there was no finality in such an agree-
ment, and it was with reluctance, and only on your distinct assurance that the terms subsequently
arranged would fully cover us against any loss, that we signed the agreement. AYe could notbut
remember your statement that tho agreement with higher charges against us, was on the point ofbeing
signed in New Zealand. Tho terms to be charged to the emigrants, the form of agreement with them,
also of the promissory notes to be taken from them, and, in fact, all details were from time to time
discussed with and approved by you. These terms bound us to repay you by instalments £10 of the
passage money with interest, and entitled us to charge, in addition to any other advances we might
make, £15 to the emigrants, and to deduct a portion of the amount weeklyfrom their wages. In the
mode of execution and witnessing these agreements and promissory notes, we acted entirelyupon the
advice and information of either yourself or the Government Emigration Agent, Mr. Carter—the
differencebetween the £10you charged us and the £15we were to charge theemigrants being in fact
the only margin to set against any loss that might arise through delinquencies or misfortune; and this,
you assured us, would be amply sufficient to do so. We never desired to make any profit out of the
emigration, but we certainly relied upon your assurance that this margin was sufficient to protect us
against any loss.

" We had no knowledge that in these same ships you were intending to send out other emigrants
on different terms, requiring from them very much less payment for their passage money than was
required from our emigrants ; and although the latter required help in removing from their homes to
the ship, and also for their kit and clothing, yet that was given from our firm, and not from the
Government; so that in what tho Government had to provide, viz. the passage money, there was a
marked disadvantage, to the extent of a third or one-half of the passage money, to our emigrants, as
compared with the Government emigrants.

" There is no doubt that during the voyage thosefacts always became known, and created a fooling
of disappointment and dissatisfaction which has resulted in a very disastrous defeat of the whole object
to us of this emigration. Tho men, as soon as they landed, mostly deserted, disjjersed themselves over
the Colony, and refused to work for us, saying they had been ill-treated and overreached—and blamed
us for what is in fact the arrangementforced upon us by you.

2—l. 5.
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"We have said in the commencement of this letter that we only entered upon this subject at the
urgent request of the New Zealand Government, and manifestly with the desire to provide labour for
the public works to bo intrusted to us, so that those works might proceed rapidly without creating a
great disturbance in the question of labour in the other industries in the country. "We have sent out
1,299 adult males, and according to our most recent adviceswe have 525 working for us ; theremainder
are mostly remaining in the country engaged at other work, and we have been unable to recover any-
appreciable amount of their promissory notes from them.

" Thus the country has the advantage of the large number of selected men and their families for
its industries and revenue, but, unfortunately for us, at our cost.

" .Again, we have been repeatedly informed by our firm in New Zealand, that when some of the
emigrants arrived there were notpublic works intrusted to us sufficient to employ them, and we have
had cither to find temporary employment for them, so as to keep our engagement with them, or see
them leaving us for other work from which it is almost impossible torecall them, and our latest advices
assure us that there is no necessity for further emigrants for the works given to us.

" Under the circumstances as herein stated, we feel confidence in appealing to you for a recon-
sideration of the terms as to the emigrants who have been already sent out by us,—and wo must
certainly be put upon an entirely different footing with reference to any further number. We arenot,
and neverwere, desirousof entering upon this kind of engagement,but believe, if the Governmenturge
it upon us, we could organize anewtheemigration movementfor the despatch of considerable numbers ;
but with reference to the past we think we have a fair claim to a full reimbursement of any moneys
wo have paid in connection with this matter, and a release from the notes signed by us.

" Tour emigration circulars show that you have found it quite necessary, in order to keep up the
flow of emigration and to put yourselfon a level with other countries who have active agents here for
similarobjects, to give a very great modification of the terms you formerly demanded even from the
Government emigrants ; and the promissory notes for £10, which is now all you demand from the
emigrants, gives you no greater security than what wo imagined we had received. Wo shall bo gladto
give you the documents we -have received from the emigrants, applying their respective amounts pro
rata to your passage money and our actual advances; and we think you ought to be satisfied in our
case with what you arenow satisfied with from any casual applicant.

" We have, Ac.,
"The Hon. I. E. Featherston, &c, &c." "John Beogden and Sons.
87. Mr. Carrington.~\ Has tho Agent-General replied to that letter?—Noreply has been received

up to the time the last in-brought mailwas despatched, 11th July.
88. Hon. Mr. Fitzherhert.) Have you received notice to that effect?—No; but the firm at homo

is in the habit of sending out copies of correspondence which may have passed between tho Agent-
General and themselves during tho period between the departure of the mails.

89. Mr. O'Neill.'] What length of time had elapsed, between the time that the Agent-General
received that letter and the despatch of the last letter received by you from your home firm ?—The
Agent-General had a month in which to reply before the departure of the last mail from England,
which arrived here on sth September.

Witness: I understand complaints have been made as to the class of immigrants introduced by
the firm into New Zealand. I am prepared to lay before the Committee a copy of the means
employed for introducing a well-selected class of immigrants into this country. lam prepared
to show that evidence of good character and general suitability was required, and generally received
from their former employers, clergymen, and landlords.

The Chairmanhere stated that such evidencewas not necessary.
Witness : Immediately upon receipt of the contract of 28th June, Mr. JamesBrogden intimated his

dissatisfaction with the terms of thearrangemententered into, and thofollowing telegram was received
by tho Agent-General from Government, and a copy was sent by him to our firm in Westminster:—" Brogden dissatisfied with emigration arrangements with his firm. Some trouble with
emigrants." The contract itself was submitted to the legal adviser of the firm, who indorsed tho
following opinion upon it:—" lam of opinion that this contract is ultra vires. The fourth section of
the Act of 1871 requires that all contracts under that Act or under the Act of 1870 shall bo in the
name of tho Queen, the Governor having no power to contract in his own name, and still less to
delegate the powerof contracting."

90. Hon. Mr. Fitzherhert.] Who is the counsel?—Mr. Travers.
91. Have you had the opinion of home counsel on tho contract ?—We have had the opinion of

counsel at home on the subject, and that opinion agreed with Mr. Travers's.
92. Hon. Mr. O'Sorke.] Was that opinion taken after the contract was executed?—Tes, after the

contract was executed.
93. Hon. Mr. Fitzherhert.] Have you got the opinion given by the home counsel?—No; but I

willbe prepared to furnish that opinion, or an extract from it.
94. The Chairman.'] I think we have it in evidence that from the first Mr. James Brogden

expressed his disapprobation with the arrangement; and I infer from that that he strongly suspected
that his firm had entered into a contract that would result in loss. If so, is it not a natural inference
that he was aware of the liability incurred ?—lt was not until after the arrival of the immigrants that
he was made aware of the terms upon which they had come out. On becoming awareof these terms,
he telegraphed to the firm in England that he was certain that the arrangement entered into would
result in loss.

95. Mr. Gillies.'] Can you fix the date of that intimation ?—Tho 9th July, 1872.
96. The Chairman.] He was not aware of the actual terms of the contract until such time as thoimmigrants came out to the Colony, but was he not sufficiently aware of the terms upon which theprevious immigration had been conducted by tho firm to be dissatisfied with it, and to communicate

with the firm at homo, warning them against carrying out immigration upon the terms they did ?—No. When hereceived tho communications of March and April, he was under the impression it was
being carried on without any liability whatever.
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97. I think it appearedfrom the first letteryou read, thatMr. Alexander Brogdon told Mr. James
Brogden the terms were, that the difference between £10 charged by the Government and the £15 they
were charging was to recoup them for any chanceof loss. Now I wish to ask you if you are not aware
that as soon as Mr. James Brogden received that letter, he perceived difficulties would arise from the
position in which the firm was placed for the recovery of these promissory notes, and that difficulties
would also arise from thefact of the Government carrying on immigration on different terms, and that
ho immediately urged upon his firm not to go on with the immigration arrangements?—No; I am not
aware of that.

98. Mr. Macandrew.~\ In fixing your prices for works, was there any allowance made for a rise in
the rate of wages ?—No; excepting the usual allowance for contingencies. The prices for the
Dunedin and Clutha and all other lines contracted for at that time were arranged between Mr.
Henderson and Mr. Carruthers. A schedule of theseprices were afterwards submitted to and received
the approval of the Minister, and I have no personal knowledge of any provision having been made for
immigration liabilities.

99. The Chairman.^ Were you present at the interviews which took place between the Colonial
Engineer and Ministers when these prices were determined upon?—I was.

100. The interview with the Engineer or the Minister ?—Between the Engineer and Mr.
Henderson, particularly in regard to the Dunedin and Clutha contract.

101. Hon. Mr. Fifzherbert.] What is your position in thefirm ?—Ihave charge of the immigration
department, and I am deputy representative of the Messrs. Brogden.

102. I will ask you whether you are aware of any extra price, allowance, or concession, or
any advantage in price, having been made to the Messrs. Brogden in respect of any probable loss
arising from their immigration arrangements ?—No ; none whatever. The contracts were signed
before we had any advices about this immigration contract.

103. Independent of that, you say you are deputy representative of the firm, and that you havo
charge of the mmigration epartment. In any contracts for works between Messrs. Brogden and
the Government, was there any allowance made, any concessions or any extra price whatever allowed
in respect of their having undertaken immigration ?—No ; there was none.

104. Do you know thatpositively ?—I know that positively. I know that there was no provision
whatever made for that.

105. Mr. Curtis.] Did you not consider the effect of this immigration upon theprice of labour ;
that is to say, in giving in any particular tender you took into account the probable effects of this
immigration, either as regards the reducing of existing prices, or of the preventing of a rise upon any
large work or undertaking?—When the contracts were drawn up, the price of labour was stated to bo
Gs. per day. By introducing labour into the country we naturally thought that it would havo the
effect ofkeeping down the price to 6s. per day, and that we would be providing sufficient labourfor
carrying out the public works without materially interfering with any other industry.

10(5. Mr. Macandrew.] Tou say that the Messrs. Brogden fixed the price of these contracts
irrespective altogether of the introduction of labour by this means ?—Quite so.

107. In entering into these largo contracts, you were prepared to rely upon the ordinary supply
of labour in the Colony ?—Well, wo expected that the Government immigrants sent out would increase
the labour supply, and we thought that, rather than disturb native industry, wo might get a labour
supply from Australia.

108. Mr. Parker.'] Did your firm base its contract upon ninehours' labourper day when therate of
labour per day was only eight hours ?—lt will be shown by the correspondence that Mr. Henderson
was informed by the Government that therate ofwages was 6s. per day for nine hours' work.

109. TTon. Mr. Bichardson] Tou say that these contracts were arranged at prices based on an
impression that the rate of labour was 6s. per day for nine hours' work, and that no contingency in
the shape of an increase in the price of labour was allowed for?—That was the rate of wages it was
based upon, and there was no provision for increased rates beyond the usual item of contingencies
allowed on all railway contracts.

110. Mr. Macandrew.] What is meant by the word " contingency " ?—lt is supposed to cover bad
work, or work on bridges that may be washed away, or a rise in the price of labour or in the price of
material.

111. Hon. Mr. Richardson.] You state that these contracts were based upon a calculation of
6s. per day for nine hours' work ?—Tcs ; these are the figures they were based upon. All the men
at Auckland started upon that footing, and it was not until after the arrival of our men in the Colony
that it was found out that colonial labour generally was eight hours. The result in thefirst instance
was thatstrikes took place on several of out works, and the result was that the eight hours' system
had to be adopted.

112. Mr. Parker^] Then you based your calculations upon information received from the Govern-
ment ?—Yes. From information got by Mr. Henderson from the Government, wo were led to believe
that the rate was 6s. per day for nine hours' work. In point of fact, these were the hours in Auckland
in March, 1872.

113. Hon. Mr. O'Rorke.] What were the terms upon which thefirst immigrants came out ?—
Messrs. Brogdenhad no specified agreementbetween the Agent-General and themselves. TheAgent-
General paid thepassage money up to that time.

114. And theAgent-General holds Messrs. Brogden's promissory notes for the amounts?—Yes ;
he holds them to the extent of £18,400.

115. Youhave stated that the last vessel despatched from England was the "Lutterworth," oil
23rd December, 1872 ?—Yes.

11G. Are you aware of the Agent-General having made any change in his regulations between the
time the contract was entered into and that date as, alleged in your petition ?—The terms werereduced
to £4 on the -Ith December, 1872.

117. Were not these terms made for nominated immigrants ?—I am notprepared to say definitely.
I know that a great grievance arose in consequence of the Government having sent out immigrants for
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£5 in the same ships with our man. They naturally told each other, and our men, who were paying
£15, were of course dissatisfied.

118. Were not these the Agent-General's terms prior to the contract being entered into ?—I
believe they were.

119. Hon. Mr. Fitxherbert.] How do you account for the fact that it never struck you that there
would be difficultyin recovering your amounts when youknew all along that you were charging your
immigrants at therate of £3 to £1 ?—Simply because the Agent-General, at all events the sub-agent,
Mr. Carter, stated to us that there was no other work in New Zealand for our men.

120. That you would have such a monopoly of the work that these men would notbe able to find
employment elsewhere ?—Tes.

121. You think then that when the firm at home signed this immigration contract, and were
aware that they were charging £15 against £5 charged by the Government, they believed they would
be able to recover the difference in consequenceofa monopoly of work havingbeen granted to them?—They relied upon the assurance of the Agent-General.

122. I understand that it is your opinion that the firm at home entered into an agreement with
the Agent-General to introduce immigrants into the Colony, and that at the time they were fully
aware that the Government were sending out immigrants for £5per head when the firm was charging
£15, and that they believed they would be able to recover the difference from having been led to
believe they had obtained a monopoly of the work ?—I cannot speak for the firm.

123. But your own opinion ?—My personal opinion is that that was the reason which induced
them to sign the agreement, and especially the assurance of the Agent-General that there would be no
difficulty in collecting these moneys. At the same time they were under the impression that they
would get railway contracts sufficient to give them control of the labour market.

124. Hon. Mr. Richardson.] Was the result of the No. 1 contract known at this time. Was
it not known that it had been rejected by the House ?—lt was not until November that the result of
No. 1 contract was made known.

125. What are your grounds for making tho statement you did about Mr. Carter?—We have the
statement in aprivate letter written from the firm to myself on 18th September, 1872.

126. When you began to suspect that these men intended to leave you, might you not have used
greater diligence in obtaining judgment against them?—They left without giving notice. Some of
them went to Auckland, Canterbury, and Otago, and in some cases changed their names. Of £1,501
value of promissory notes that we took into Court for recovery, a sum of £327 ss. lOd. for expenses
was incurred. The actual amount we have recovered as the result of these proceedings is £124 10s.,
so that we are actually out of pocket for law expenses £202 15s. lOd.

127. Did it not occur to you that your course was to get out judgment against the whole of
them ? It would not have been necessaryfor you to have proceeded further against them. Tou could
have held overthe judgment until these men had become possessed of property. It seems to me there
was a want ofactivity on your part which I do not understand.—The average cost of obtaining judg-
ment against each of these men was about £3 35., and theresult of putting them into Court wouldbo a
strong inducement to them to leave the locality, and probably many of them would go to Australia;
thathas been the case in three or four instances.

128. Mr. Macandrew.~\ Have you gotyourbill of costs ?—Tou cannot fix the actual cost in each
case very well. The law costs alone are 255., and then there is the solicitor's costs. In some cases we
have to pay mileage on as much as sixty miles perhaps, when the men are resident that distance from
town, in order to serve summonses.

129. Hon. Mr. ffltzlierbert.] Might an arrangement not have been made so as to reduce the
average cost ?—I am not aware thatactual Court fees can boreduced.

130. When you saw that the men were going to leave you, with a little activity might you not
have been in possession of judgments against them?—We might have been.

131. Tou could then have asked the Government to take the debts over?—In order to do so the
men must have been sued upon their arrival here, before theybecame aware of any extra advantage to
be obtained in respect of wages. A large amount of moneyhas been already spent in taking these men
into Court. It struck us that it would bo better that the debts should standover until the men had got
settled down, and then we could take proceedings and enforce payment against them, even although
they had gone out of the Province.

132. Then you thought it would be better to allow the matter to lie over in the meantime, and
upon somefuture opportunity to take steps for recovery of these debts?—We thought it better to wait
until the men had got fairly settled in the country. For instance, we know at the present time that
there are from sixty to onehundred of our men located in the Wairarapa district, but to get at them
would necessitate along journey to that district and great expense, without anyreasonable return at
present.

133. Hon. Mr. Rieliardson.~\ It has been stated that large advanceswere madeto these immigrants
at home for outfits. Are you aware if the Agent-General was informed from time to time of the
amount of these advances, and to whom they were made ?—The Agent-General was aware that we had
to provide outfits, and that the amounts paid to families were much greater than they would be to
single men.. 134. Have you anything to show that the Agent-General was informed of these advances having
been made, or that he was aware of or otherwise made aparty to them ?—No, I do notthink that there
is anything in any of the letters to show that he was. I can only state that there were so many
difficulties in the way of obtaining immigrants that we were either obliged to advance a sumfor their
outfit, or else not get the men at all.

" Sic,— Wellington, 20th September, 1873.
" In giving the Committee certain extracts from correspondence which passed between the

Agent-General and Messrs. Brogden on the subject of their contract, I inadvertently overlooked a
letter dated 21st December, 1872, which I intended to read to the members. I nowenclose a copy of
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copy of that letter and shall feel obliged if you will have it read, and allow it to form part of my
evidence. I have, &c,

"W. Eeeves, Esq., M.H.E. J. Billing."

" Sm,— " Queen Square, "Westminster, S.W., 21st December, 1872.
" In fulfilment of the letter of our agreement with you relative to New Zealand emigrants, we

have the honor to hand you our promissory notes for passage money disbursed by you to the 19th
November, 1872.

" But while wo thus unreservedlyfulfil the letter of the agreement, we have to represent to you
that we are likely to sustainvery great loss in the transaction. Our agents in New Zealand inform us
that great numbers of the men whosepassage moneys we thus secure desertedon their arrival in port,
and it willbo extremely difficult, even if at all possible, for us to recover from them our advances for
passage moneys andkits. Nothing is included in ourprices for works to cover that contingency. Not
only, then, is our object for securing menfor theexecution of ourworks defeated,but our expenditure is
thrown away and becomes dead loss ; while the New Zealand Government, whose object is immigration
for all purposes, secures the distribution of a number of able-bodied men through the Colony at our
expense.

" Under these circumstances, and seeing that in accepting your form of agreement we relied
mainly upon your long experience, and on your opinion that themargin between the amount to bo paid
by us and the amount charged to the emigrants would amply protect us from any loss, we trust to
your supporting any representations wo may have to make to the Government hereafter, by way of
appeal to them to make allowance to us for any losses we may ultimately sustain by the transaction.

" We have, &c,
"The Hon. I. E. Teathorston, &c., &c." "John Beockden and Sons.

Tuesday, IGth September, 1873.
Mr. John Hendeeson was recalled, and examined as follows :—

135. The Chairman.'] In looking over the evidence as corrected by you, I observe that material
alterations have been madeby you in pencil markings, by which your answers in some cases have been
placed in quite a different light from that in which they originally stood. It is contrary to the rules
of the Committee to allow material alterations to be made in that way. If you desire to alter any of
your previous statements, it will have to be done by re-examination, and it is for that purpose the Com-
mittee haverequested your attendance.

The alterations having been pointed out to the witness, he said,—I now wish to explain mv
evidence by making the following statement:—Both the Government and the firm thought it wouldbo
desirable that immigrants should bo brought out to the Colony, but it was urged on the Government
if the firm brought out immigrants they should be allowed to do so on the same terms as those brought
out by the Government; at the same time we received no equivalent for the expenses which might be
incurred by the firm for immigration when adjusting prices for the several works with the Engineer-
iii-Chief.

The Chairman directed the witness's attention to an item in his previous evidence relative to the
inabilityof the firm to employ the men on their arrival, from the fact that sufficient works had not
been allotted to them.

130. The Chairman.] Can you state the name of the vessel by which these men arrived ?—The
men thatarrived by the " Jessie Headman."

137. Mr. O'Neill.] Howwas it that those men, as you have already stated, could not be employed
on the Lower Hutt line ?—Because at the time of their arrival the work had been partly stopped by
instructions from the Engineer-in-Chief, with a view to altering the designfor protective works. The
works in progress on other parts of the lino were sufficiently manned.

138. Mr. Parker.] Have you any personal interest in the claim set forth in the petition ?—Yes.
139. Hon. Mr. Hichardson.] You have stated justnow that the reason you could not employ the

men by the " Jessie Headman" was that the works were partly stopped by instructions from the
Engineer-in-Chief ?—Yes.

140. Were you prepared to go on during the interval ?—Yes, but the design was notready.
141. Mr. Parker.] In one part of the petition you mention that the firm suffered loss because

there was not sufficient employment provided for the menwhen they came out, and in another part of
the petition it states that the loss was occasioned in consequence of the men having been taken away
andemployed by other parties ?—ln certain localities there was no work to provide the men with, and
in others, where works were provided, the men were taken away by the residents. Although we found
that it wouldnotpay to move the men about from one place to another, we had to do so when work
had not been provided, to places where it had.

142. Can you name the places in which the men were induced by the residents to leave your em-
ployment ?—ln Invercargill, in particular, the first shipload was taken awayfrom us so fast that within
a week of their arrival ninety-two men left.

143. Son. Mr. Hichardson.] "When you say that you had not sufficient work to employ the men,
do you meanthat you had not sufficient, or merely that you had not sufficient in a particular part of
the Colony ?—"We had sufficient work for the men already sent, but wo incurred great expenses
in removing the men from one place to another—from the places where there was not work to the
places where it was.

144. Did you not offer to land men in New Zealand, provided you could get work to employ that
number of men ?—Yes, but on the condition already mentioned.

Mr. John Caeetttiiebs,Colonial Engineer, was in attendance, and was examined as follows:—
145. Hon. Mr. Hichardson.] "When you arranged the details of prices with Mr. Henderson of the

Dunedin-Clutha Eailway, was Mr. Billing present ?—I believe he was present as clerk for Mr. Hen-
derson.
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146. "Wlien these prices were settled, was the rate of wages and the number of hours perday taken
into account?—Nothing was absolutely stated as to the rate of wages, although the rates likely to
prevail are usually kept in view when such works arc to be considered. The prices were settled
principally upon the rate paid for other works. I never said anything, and I am pretty sure the
contractors never said anything, that would lead to the belief that an increase in the price of labour
would lead to any claim for compensation.

147. Were these prices calculated upon the prices then current in theProvinces, or was there any
allowance made for the difference likely to arise from the fact of large works being put in the market ?
—Certain prices were fixed upon, under the supposition that everything would advance in price.
Everybody knew that skilled labour, timber, and other things, would rise in price. There was no sup-
position that unskilled labour would largely increase in price. It was expected that a large immigra-
tion, which was expected to go on, wouldkeep it down in price.

148. Mr. White.] What were theprices then current ?—Seven shillings per day for eight or nine
hours' work, according to the season.

1-19. Mr. Rolleston.] In making up these prices, was not the labour question made a condition of
the contract? —No, not in any way. There was some talk at the time amongst Ministers about a
limiting clause, but I remember perfectly well that I was careful not to bind the Government in any
way. I knew perfectly that it was impossible to guaranteewages by fixing any particular rate.

150. Mr. Macandrew.] In fixing the prices to be paid in respect to contracts, was there any allow-
ance made for any contingency arising as to the price of the wages?—When you fix the prices of
works of this kind, they are made high or low according to the likelihood of an increase or otherwise on
existing rates. The prices in this case were fixed high in order to allow of an increase, to some slight
extent, upon the then current rates for unskilled labour, and for skilled labour, which wouldhave
eitherto be imported or paid at a higher rate.

151. The prices, then, were fixed at such a rate as to allowof a slight increase in the rate paid for
unskilled labour ?—Tes.

152. Was there any allowance made, or was it taken into consideration in fixing these prices, that
the contractors were about to import labour into the Colony ?—No, it was not expected that the con-
tractors would have to import labour, because it was understood at the time that the Government was
goingto import a greatmany immigrants into the place, and it was supposed that that importation
would be sufficient to keep prices down to prevailing rates.

153. I see by all the contracts that an allowance of 12 J per cent, was made in name of contin-
gencies ; what was that allowance intended chiofiy to cover?—lt would cover superintendence of the
works by foremen, and accidents to the works, tools, &c.

154. Was thatallowance made outside the 10 per cent., and irrespective altogether of it ?—Yes, it
would be outside of that.

155. Mr. Rolleston.] Is any risk of miscalculation with regard to a rise or fall in the price of
labour takenby the contractors in fixing prices for works of this kind ?—Certainly.

15G. If there should happen to be a rise in the price of labour after the contract has been entered
into, would the Government have anything to do with that ?—No ; certainly not.

157. If a fall took place in the price of labour, would the Government have had any claim
whatever against the contractors for a reduction of the contractprice ?—No ; I should not think they
would.

158. Mr. Macandrew.~\ Can you say from your own experience of the prices at which contracts
have been let to local contractors, whether the prices Messrs. Brogden have received are in excess or
the reverse ; whether they have been paid over or under the prices paid to other contractors doing
similar work ?—No ; they are certainly not paid under these contractors ; but I am not prepared to
say that they are paid in excess. I would not give a reply npon that branch of the question at
present. lam in course of preparing a statement whichwill show the matter more fully.

159. Mr. Rolleston.'] However, you state generally that they are not underpaid ?—No ; they
are not.

160. Mr. Oarrington.] Were the contracts takenin the impression that there would be ample labour
supply in the Colony ?—I cannot answer, as it would be stating Mr. Brogden's impressions. I know
that I have heard Mr. Henderson frequently express his opinion that the labour question was a very
serious one, and one which he looked upon with some alarm. I always looked upon it myselfas a
serious question, and I still look upon it as a very serious question, as the works arc not yet in full
operation.

161. Mr. O'Neill.] In arranging these prices, did you make any allowance for any loss that might
fall to the Messrs. Brogden by the introduction of immigrants ?—No.

162. Son. Mr. Richardson.] With regard to the stoppage of works on the Hutt line, Mr.
Henderson stated that they were delayedfor three months waiting for an alteration in the design, and
that he had to take menoff and put others on again in consequence of this alteration of design?—I do
not think thatho has any reason for saying so.

163. Mr. Currington.~] Was there no difference made in the case of the contracts given to the
Messrs. Brogden regarding contingencies and allowances as compared with contracts given to other
parties ?—No; contracts have been let to other parties in the same manner as to Messrs. Brogden,
but only by public tender. Where the public are allowed to tender for the work, the contractor
includes contingencies in the estimatedcost. Ofcourse the contingency is provided for whether it bo
put down as such, or simply included as a first price.

164. Son. Mr. Richardson.] The question is, whether in your dealings with the Messrs. Brogden,
you recognized certain allowances which would not have been made to other contractors ?—No;
certainly not.

165. Mr. Rolleston.] In arranging these contracts with Messrs. Brogden, were you in any way
authorized to consider the questionof the introduction ofimmigrants, or anything beyond the question
of the price such as would have been considered for any other contractor ?—No.

166. Youwere notinstructed or authorized to take any question of thatkind intoconsideration ?—
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No ; but I would have certainly taken into consideration the question of a probable rise in the price of
labour if no immigration had been going on.

167. Would you have done so for the Brogdens more than you would have done for any one
else ?—No ; certainly not.

168. Did you consider that the contracts entered into with the Government had relation to any
other purpose, especially with regard to the introduction of immigrants by the Messrs. Brogden ?—
No; I expected that whatever arrangement Messrs. Brogden might make would rest upon its own
bottom. 1 knew Government intended to import labour, either through the Messrs. Brogden or in
some other way.

169. The Chairman.'] "Was your estimate not made for the guidance and information of Ministers,
and in all cases was it not left with Ministers to decide upon the final price to be paid for the
contracts ?—Tes.

170. "Were not the prices given to Brogden in all or nearly all cases in excess of the prices
estimated by you?—No, they were not. There was very seldom any difference between the
two. They were nearly the same ; and, practically speaking, my prices were adopted in all cases. In
arranging the Mataura line an error was made by Mr. Brogden, but eventually his amount wasbrought
down so much that the price given came near my figures.

171. In that case there was a very wide difference?—Tes; but in all the others there was
no material differencebetween my figures and theprices accepted.

172. Mr. Macandrew.] In other lines pretty much of the same character as that of the Inver-
cargill and Mataura live (the Kingston line, for example), were the prices similar?—Tes.

173. Are you aware of the relative prices of the section of the "VVintonandKingston line about to
bocommenced and the prices given for the Mataura line ?—Thesewill be shownby the table appended.

174. Son. Mr. Richardson.'] Are you not aware that in every case where the Brogdens have
tendered for work an allowance was made, in dealing with their estimate, of 15 per cent, above your
estimate, as the cost of the work if let by public competition ?—ln making up the estimate I always
took out what I imagined to be the cost if let in small contracts, and to that sum I added an amount
for management, profits, and the risk incurred if taken by sub-contractors. I do not remember
whether the amount was 15 per cent. ; I think it was more.

175. Mr. White.] Do you think it is desirable to let these works in small contracts ?—ln
my opinion, small contracts are far better than largo ones. As an engineer, myopinion in that respect
is the opinion of a small minority. The majority of engineers, I know, are strongly of the opinion
that eithera Government or a company should employ nothing but the large contractor; but I am not
of that opinion.

176. The Chairman.] The great saving wouldbe in the 15 per cent. ?—Tes.
177. Mr. T. B. Gillies.] This 15 per cent, thatwas given to Brogden was the same allowance that

wouldhave been made to any other large contractor ?—Exactly. The amount, 15 percent., is not larger
than usual under similar circumstances.

178. Mr. White.] Presuming that the works had been let in contracts of less magnitude, and that
they had been opened to public tender, would this 15 per cent, have been saved?—lt depends upon
whether the contractors in the country would have been enabled to combine if so large aproportion of
the works had not been let to Messrs. Brogden.
Table of Woek on the Invebcaegill and Matatiha, and Winton and Kingston Railways, with

Corresponding Prices. Only such Works are given as are common to both Lines.

ice.

Description. Unit. Remarks.
Invercargill
and Mataura.

Winton and
Kingston.

buttings, ordinary
Side cuttings
Stream diversions
Ditching
forming lino
Celling
Clearing ...
xrubbing
jevel crossing, 2nd class,, ,, 3rd class

O yards
£ a.
0 1

d.
5

£ s.
0 1
0 1
0 1
0 0
0 5
8 0
4 0
1 10

12 0
10 2

d.
G
2
3
9
0
0
0
0
G
G

»
0 1
0 0
0 8
2 8
5 12
1 2

24 12
8 12

5
9
5
0
6
0
2
8

j)

chain
acre

chain

limber C.B.M. 37 10 0 0 15 0
flncludes anexpensivebridgeovei

J the Mataura, thebridges onthe
Winton line being very unim-

[_ portant.
?ilinS
ronwork
Concrete ...
doping
3uddle
fencing ...
battle stops
3allast

lin. feet
lb.

0 4
0 0
2 5

0

0

0 2
0 0
3 0

0
7
0G yards

G yards
chain

0 6
1 8

18 0
0 2

9
2
0
3

0 2
1 5
5 10
0 2

0
0
0
3G yards
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The prices on the Invoreargill and Mataura Eailway areexclusive of management and contractor's
profits.

lGth September, 1873. John Carrtjther3.

"Wednesday, 17th September, 1873.
The Hon. Mr. Eiciiardson was in attendance, and was examined as follows:—'■179. Mr. Macandrew.'] What works if any did you as Minister of Public Works negotiate for the

construction of with Messrs. Brogden ?—Two railways were let by me to the Messrs. Brogden, the one
Oamaru and Moeraki, and the other Waitara and New Plymouth.

180. In fixing the price to be paid to Messrs. Brogden, was an allowance made to cover the
contingency of a rise in the price of labour, or of the contractors being compelled to import labour
from beyond sea ?—There was an allowancemade of 15 per cent, over and above the estimate by the
Engineer-in-Chief, as the cost to the Government of these works if letby public competition.

181. Did that 15 per cent, extend over the entire contract, including contingencies ?—Yes,
including contingencies for the entire contract.

182. Mr. Rolleston.~\ Did the Engineer's estimate of what the cost should be include the question
of contractors'profits ?—Tes.

183. Mr. Parker.'] I understand that an additional allowance was made for that?—Tes.
184. Were the Brogdens given to understand that that was intended to cover anyloss they might

sustain in respect of their immigration operations ?—They were not made officially aware what the
allowance was made for. From the time I took office, the Brogdens were nevermade aware what the
Engineer's estimate to the Government was.

185. Mr. Bolleston.] What was the difference in thecourse pursued by you and your predecessors
in regard to these contracts ?—Since I took office the course taken has been that a copy of the plans
and specifications were handed to Brogden and Sons in terms of the agreement No. 3, and they were
allowed one month to put in an offer for the work. In the meantime the Engineer-in-Chiefmade his
estimate of the value of the work as confidential adviser to the Government. He valued them at the
rate the works wouldbe charged if theworks were let by public competition. The Government then
fixed thepercentage which in their opinion was fair to be given to Brogden, after which they werein a
position to accept or decline the offer sent in by them.

18G. Are you aware, or can you say from your, own knowledge, whether or not there was any
connection between the prices paid for these contracts—the contracts let to the Messrs. Brogden
during the time you were in office—and the proposal made by them for conducting immigration ?—
None whatever. They supplied themselves with labour from whatever source they could get it. As
to the expense of introducing immigrants by that firm, I wish to add, thatwhen each contract was let,
an indorsement was made to the effect that the Government was at liberty to deduct the amount of
the promissory notes given to the Agent-General for passage-money for immigrants introduced under
their contract.

187. You say that they, the Messrs. Brogden, were at liberty to supply themselves with labour
from whatever source they could get it. Was there any prohibition made against theemployment of
Chinese labour?—Not that I am aware of.

188. Since when was that arrangement made about deducting the amounts of promissory notes
given to the Agent-General ?—About six months ago that first came out from England.

' 189. The Chairman.] When works have been let by public competition, have the contracts entered
into been materially under the Engineer's estimate ?—ln every case but one, and that one was but a
trifling case, which occurred down South.

190. Has any claim been made by the Messrs. Brogden, either in writing or verbally, in
connection with the contract for any works let to them for special consideration in respect of their
immigration operations ?—No ; certainly not.

191. Mr. Bolleston.] Can you explain what is the course pursued in regard to the framing
of estimates for railways upon long lengths and small contracts ?—-The usual course is for the
Engineer, in the first instance, to make an estimate of the actual cost, independent altogether of any
question as to who may do the work. Then a percentage is fixed by the Government as to what is a
fair allowance for contingencies, profits, &c, and this added to actual cost is the amount which
guides the Government as to acceptance or otherwise of tenders for work.

192. The only difference here is, that Messrs. Brogden are bound to give the Government
opportunity to make an offer for the work without submitting to public tender ?—Yes.

193. Mr. O'Neill.] In letting contracts to the Messrs. Brogdonhas there been any difference in
the mode of adopting the estimates as between you and your predecessors ?—Yes ; there has been this
difference. Our predecessors allowed the Engineer-in-Chief and Mr. Henderson, as Brogdcn's
Engineer, to endeavour as far as possible to agree upon detailed prices. Since I took office no
communication has been allowed to take place betweenBrogden's Engineer and the Engineer-in-Chief.
The latterhas been employed by the Government as its confidential adviser.

194. Has there been any marked difference in the prices given by the Engineer-in-Chief between
the earlier and later contracts ?—Not much. As time has gone on prices have varied, but upon the
whole there has not been much difference.

195. Has any consideration been made in these contracts to the Messrs. Brogden for any loss
which might fall upon them by the introduction of immigrants. I mean, has any special sum been
given, or special allowance made, in regard to immigrants ?—No.

J. D. Ormond, Esq., M.H.E., in attendance, and was examined as follows:—"
196. Mr. Maca?idrew.] What works, if any, did you as Minister of Public Works, negotiate forthe construction of with Messrs. Brogden?—The negotiations for railways were conducted jointly

by myselfand Mr. Beeves, when we were both at the seat of Government.
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197. The Chairman.'] What works were so arranged for ?—During the timeI was in theMinistry
the railways in the North Islandarranged for were theAuckland-Waikato, and the Napier-PakiPaki.
The Picton and Blenheim line hadbeen partly arranged for before either of us took office. It will be
better for Mr. Iteeves to speak of the railways in the Middle Island.

108. In fixing the price to be paid to Messrs. Brogden, was any allowance made to cover the
contingency of arise in the price of labour or of thecontractors being compelled to import labour from
beyond the sea ?—-The contingency of arise in the price of labour certainly was a considerationof all
the contracts, and one which was discussed between Ministers and Messrs. Brogden in settling the
contracts made with them. The Brogdens on those occasions always raised the labour question and
therisk they ran in respect of it; but the question of importing labour from beyond the seas was never
distinctly raised in connection with the contracts.

199. Mr. Carringlon.] Did the Engineer-in-Chief bear that risk to the Messrs. Brogden in mind
—1 mean the risk of a probable rise in the price of wages—when he framed his estimates for
the works P—l believe he did. Ministers certainly did in settling the, contracts.

200. The Chairman.] What was the course pursued by you in arranging contracts with Messrs.
Brogden?—ln the first place, before Mr. Eeeves and I took office the Picton and Blenheim line had
been arranged for; the Engineer-in-Chief for the Colony and Messrs. Brogden's engineer went over
the line, took out quantities andfixed prices, which were then submitted to Ministers. The next line
arranged for was the Auckland line, and there the same course was pursued. Upon consideration.
Ministers decided that it was not desirable to continue that course. In after arrangements of
contracts, the practice was in the first place for the works to be offered to Brogden, who was allowed
a month within which to tender. The Engineer-in-Chief submitted to Ministers his list of prices,
"quantities,&c, which guided Ministers in considering Messrs. Brogden's tender.

201. Mr. Parker.] Do you know whether any instruction was given to the Engineer to deal
liberally when fixing the prices for Brogden, on account of contingencies arising as regards labour ?—
No particular instructions were given. No doubt he took that point into consideration when fixing
his prices; at all events,he always regarded it as a question ofvery considerable importance.

202. Mr. O'Neill.] Was any special allowance made to the Brogdens for any loss they might
sustain by the introduction of immigrants?—ln fixing the price of contracts, the two questions were
neverconnected.

Wir. Eeeves, Esq., M.H.R., in attendance, and was examined as follows:—
203. Mr. Macandrew.] What works, if any, did you, as Minister of Public Works, negotiate for

the construction of with Messrs. Brogden ?—I negotiated the construction of some, but without refer-
ence to my diary I cannot at the present moment say precisely what they were. I was engaged in
considering the contracts for several different lines, but so far as 1 can recollect I had not the sole
arrangement of any one contract. In the negotiations for the Invercargill and Mataura line, IwaR
engaged for the best part of a week or ten days in continual correspondence about it. In fact I met
Mr. Brogden and Mr. Henderson daily in my office, and yet the actual conclusion of the agreement did
not take place until a fortnight afterwards, when I was away from Wellington, so that 1 could not say
absolutely what works I concluded. The arrangementsfor the agreement spread over three weeks or
a month.

204. 11l fixing the price to be paid to Mr. Brogden. was an allowancemadeto coverthecontingency
of a rise in the j>riee oflabour, or of the contractors being compelled to import labour from beyond
seas?—I only speak of that part of the agreement with which I had to do. The preliminary agree-
ments as to prices were arranged between Mr. Henderson and Mr. Carruthers. The result of their
arrangements was then put before Ministers, and Ministers were guided by the Engineer's advice.
Whenever a difference arose between the Engineer and the contractors, as was almost always the case,
it then became a question for bargain between Ministers and the contractors. In consideration of the
settlement of thatdifference, which was sometimes large, the question of labour was decidedly con-
sidered ; that is to say, Mr. Brogden urged upon Ministers, as he didrepeatedly upon myself, the diffi-
culty they would have to contend with, with the certain prospect ofa risein the price of labour. These
considerations 1 felt bound to take into account, and I invariably treated them with extra liberality on
that account. As to the second part of the question, so far as my recollection serves me, the fact of
theirhaving to import labour from Great Britain or elsewhere neverformed any part of the considera-
tion, neverhaving been brought on the tapis.

205. Mr. Rolleston.] Whether and to what extentdo you think that the liberal terms offered by
the Government to intending immigrants in England by the Agent-General operated prejudicially to
Messrs. Brogden's arrangements for sending out immigrants ?—I can only imagine the result. If
Brogden had any great difficulty in obtaining immigrants when the Government was acting under the
original regulations, that difficulty must, as a matter of course, have been increased when the Agent-
General gave free passages.

206. Mr. Carrinqton.] Would it not also have the effect of greatly increasing the difficulty of
recovering money outhere? Would it not have the effect of making the men sent out dissatisfied ?—
In my opinion it woulddo so.

207. The Chairman.] Were the alterations in the terms for introducing Government immigrants
made while Messrs. Brogdenwere fulfillingtheir contract,and, if so, atwhat period?—I cannotanswer
that question until I have had an opportunity for referring to dates. I understand the alterations
were not made by the Agent-Generaluntil Messrs. Brogden had practically thrownup their contract.

208. Mr. O'JVeill.] In making contracts for works, was there any special allowancemade to the
Messrs. Brogden for any loss they might sustain through the introduction of immigrants ?—No, I am
not awareof any.not awareof any.

Monday, 22nd Septembee, 1873.
The Hon. Mr. O'Boeke was in attendance, and was examined as follows:— .

209. Mr. Rolleston.] "When did the Government give instructions to the Agent-General to grant
3—l. 5.
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free passages to immigrants in London ?—I consider that the instructions sent to the Agent-General
by Mr. Waterhouse on the 23rd November, 1872, practically, though not explicitly, authorized the
granting of free passages. The Agent-General was then instructed to relieve immigrants of the cost
of reaching the port, and also of the cost of bedding and outfit. Mr. Waterhouse stated further :—"Imust again impress upon you that the speedy introduction of a suitable class of immigrants is the
first consideration ; the expense must be regarded of secondary importance, so long as it remains
within reasonable limits." And again with regard torelieving the emigrants ofexpense, "the ultimate
decision as to the course to be adopted must still rest with yourselff but you will understand that the
Government desires that you should feel yourself unfettered in the exercise of a wide discretion in
pursuance of the ultimate objectof a large immediate addition to the population of the Colony." This
has beenreferred to in the subsequent correspondence as authority to the Agent-General to grant free
passages if he thought proper. The Agent-General's Regulations regarding free passages were issued
on the 10th March, and revoked on the 17th of the same month. The Agent-General's telegram of
sth March was replied to onthe 12th April, authorizing the Agent-General to dispense with all charges
he thought proper.

210. Was the Government aware of the position in which the Messrs. Brogden's contracts for
immigration stood at the time the Government proposed to grant free passages ?—The Government
was quite aware of Messrs. Brogden's application to be relieved from the liabilities connected with
their contract when Mr. Waterhouse's Memorandum of 23rd November, authorizing immigrants to bo
relieved of certain, if not all, charges, was despatched. Mr. Waterhouse on the same date,
23rd November, referred to Messrs. Brogden's application to be relieved from their contract liabilities
to the Agent-General.

211. Did the Government consider whether or not that action, the granting of free passages,
would prejudice the contract with the Messrs. Brogden ?—No. It never occurred to the Government
that the Brogden contracts would be in any way affected "by it.

212. As a matter of fact, do you consider that it didaffect these contracts ?—No. The Govern-
ment never considered that they were debarred from granting free passages, if they thought proper,
by the immigration contract with the Messrs. Brogden. Even if it were so, any action that could be
taken in respect of these instructions, could not be taken until at least three monthsafter Messrs.
Brogden had ceased sending out immigrants.

213. Mr. O'Neill.'] Have the Government everreceived any information from the Agent-General
relative to a communication received from the Messrs. Brogden, with regard to a settlement of their
immigration contracts ?—The Agent-General sent outaDespatch by the last mail, to the effect that the
Messrs. Brogden had been pressing to have the matter of the liabilities they had incurredunder their
contract comprised in terms of their letterof the 10th June, 1873.

214. The Chairman.^ Did theAgent-General make any change in the Immigration Regulations
between the time Messrs. Brogden entered into the contract and the time when they practically threw
it up ?—The contract was entered into with the Messrs. Brogdon in June, 1872, and there was no
change made in the Agent-General's Eegulations between February, 1872, and March, 1873. The
change was made on the 10th of March of thatyear. Free passages were offered between the 10th
and 17th of that month.

215. During the seven days these free passages were offered, to what extent were they taken
advantageof ?—I only know of one case. I understand that several of Mr. Auld'sjmmigrants per
",Nicol Fleming" to Otago came out as free immigrants.

216. Was there any change made with respect to nominated immigrants about the time of Messrs.
Brogden's application to be relieved of their contract liabilities ?—Tes. The charges for nominated
free immigrants were reduced to £4.

217. What date was that changemade ?—lt was some timebetween December, 1872, and January,
1873. The regulations came into force on the 15th December, 1872.

218. That alteration was made in the Colony ?—Tes.
219. When would the letter containing that alteration get home ?—I should say in February,

1873, but I will give the exact date. It is acknowledged in one of the Agent-General's Despatches.
220. Mr. Macandrew.] Is there anything stated in the correspondence which passed between the

Agent-General and Brogden, or between the Government and Brogden, to imply that the risk of col-
lecting the immigrants' promissory notes should devolve^on the Government ?—Certainly not. The
Messrs. Brogden were allowed to charge an extra £5 in orderto cover therisk they incurred. I think
it is right to state that the charges made as between Government immigrants and the Brogden immi-
grants was not acharge as between £5 and £15. £5 was the sum which was taken when cash was
paid, and £10 bills were virtually taken when cash was not paid. Theregulation when cash (£5) was
not paid was as follows :—" That a deposit of £1 should bo made and a promissory note for £8 ;£2
and £6, £3 and £4, and £4 and £2. To all intents and purposes, the contributions the Government
received for Brogden's immigrants of £10, were the same as the contributions of ordinary Government
immigrants.

APPENDIX.
Memorandum No. 22, 1872, for the Agent-Geneeal, London.

Heeewith are forwarded for your information, copies of a correspondence (noted in the margin) that
has passed between the Messrs. Brogden and the Government, with reference to their immigration
contract of the 27th June, 1872. The Government have invited the Messrs. Brogden to place them-
selves in immediatecommunicationwith you, and have promised to favourably consider any suggestion
or recommendation you may make on the subject.

G. M. Wateehotjse,
(in absence of the Hon. the Minister for Immigration).

ImmigrationOffice,
"Wellington, New Zealand, 23rd November, 1872.
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Mr. J. Brogden to the Hon. the Minister for Immigration.
Sic,— "Wellington, 28th October, 1872.

Havingreference to our conversation on Saturday last, I have now the honor to submit in
writing the proposition which I then made. It is that the Government should at once relieve my
firm of all further obligations (ifany) under the contract of 27th June, 1872, and that the Government
should repay to us all actual outlay incurred by us in connection with that contract, we indorsing to
the Government the promissory notes given to us by the immigrants, and undertaking to aid the
Government as far as we can in recovering the amounts payable under thosenotes.

I need notrepeat in writing the reasons which I urged why the Government should adopt this
course.

Should the Government consent to it, I shall be willing, on the part of my firm, to enter into
arrangements with the Government for obtainingemigrants in England ; but I think it inexpedient to
propose terms for that service, which had perhaps better be discussed after the Government have
signified their determinationin regard to the matter in the former part of this letter.

This letter is of course without prejudice.
I have, &c,

The Minister for Immigration, Wellington. James Brogden.

The Hon. G. M. O'Borke to Mr. J. Brogden.
Sir,— Lands and Immigration Office, Wellington, 2nd November, 1872.

I have the honor to acknowledge the receipt of your letterof the 28th ultimo, in which you
propose that the Government should at once relieve your firm ofall further obligations(if any) under
the immigration contract of 27th June, 1872, and that you shouldbe repaid the actual outlay incurred
in connection with that contract; the promissory notes givenby the immigrants being indorsed to the
Government, and your firm undertaking to assist in recovering the sums due under those promissory
notes.

In reply, I have to express to you the regret of the Government that, after the gravest considera-
tion, they find themselves unable to meet your views so far as to relieve the firm from their liabilities
in connection with the conduct of immigration under the agreementreferred to ; but I may state that,
so far as regards modification in the terms of the contract as respects future operations, favourable
consideration will be given to any suggestion or recommendation which may be made by the Agent-
General, with whom, upon the subject, your firm are invited to place themselves in immediate
communication.

I have, &c.,
J. Brogden, Esq. G. Maurice O'Korke.

Mr. J. Brogden to the Hon. the Minister for Immigration.
Sir,— Wellington, 4th November, 1872.

Having reference to our recent correspondence respecting the immigration arrangements of
the 27th June, 1872, 1 desire especially to put upon record one of the groundsupon which I,at several
interviews, urged the Government to relieve myfirm from their obligations (if sa\j) under it—'namely,
that it places the immigrants in afar worse pecuniary position than those who are introduced under
the ordinary Immigration Regulationsof the Government, whilst it also places myfirm in the invidious
position of endeavouring to enforce upon such of them as we maybe desirous of employing, conditions
moreunfavourable than those under which we can employ other persons of the same classes.

This letter must, however, notbe treated as any recognition on my part of any obligation under
the arrangement above referred to.

I have, &c,
The Hon. the Minister for Immigration. James Beogden.

The Agent-General to the Hon. the Colonial Seceetaet.
7, Westminster Chambers, Victoria Street, Westminster, S.W.,

Sic,— 13th June, 1873.
I have the honor to forward herewith, for the information of the Government, copy of corre-

spondence which I havehad with Messrs. Brogden and Sons.
As their letter of the 12th instant was only received by me this morning, it is of course impossible

for me to make any comments upon it by the present mail.
I shall feel obliged by you informing me how far the statements made by Messrs. Brogden and

Sons are correct.
I have, &c,

I. E. Peatherstow,
The Hon. the Colonial Secretary, Wellington. Agent-General.

Messrs. Brogden and Sons to the Agent-General.
Sir,— 5, Queen Square, Westminster, S.W., 15th May, 1873.

In our interview with you on the 10th April last, we understood you to say thatyou were not
thenempowered to concede to our claim inreference to the emigration operations we have conducted
with you onbehalf of the Government of New Zealand.*

We have now the honor to enclose an extractfrom a letterreceived by the last mail, which reads
as follows:—

"Public Works Office, Wellington, 26th February, 1873.
" . . . With reference to your remarks relative to emigration, the Government under-

stand that Messrs. Brogden only undertook the sending out of labourers from England to keep
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the labour market steady, and to insure their being able to carry out their contracts. The Govern-
H*ent do not feel at present in a position to interfere with the arrangements made in London between
tke Agent-General and your firm, as the question of modification of the termsof theexisting agreement
has some time since been referred there to be dealt with by the Agent-General and the Messrs.
Brogden, more especially as, before this reference is acted on, your Mr. James Brogden will probably
have arrived in London.

" John Henderson, Esq., C.E., Wellington. " E. Bichakdson."
From that we presume thatyou have now received the necessary powerto make the modifications

we asked for, and also in reference to the emigrants we have already despatched to New Zealand, and
.shall be glad of anearly reply to this effect.

We have, &c,
John Brogden and Sons.

The Hon. I. E. Featherston, Agent-General for New Zealand,&c.

Messrs. Beogden and Sons to the Agent-General.
Sir,— 5, Queen Square, Westminster, S.W., 26th May, 1873.

Wo have the honor to draw your attention to our letter of the 15th instant, to which we have
not yet received areply, and shall feel obliged for the favour of sameat your earliest convenience.

I have, Ac,
The Hon. I. E. Featberston, John Beooden and Sons.

Agent-General for New Zealand.

The Agent-Geneeal to Messrs. Beogden and Sons.
7, Westminster Chambers, Victoria Street, Westminster, S.W.,

Gentlemen,— 27th May, 18-73.
I have the honor to acknowledge receipt of your letter of loth instant, relative to emi-

gration operations in which you have been concernedwith the Government of New Zealand.
In reply, I beg to inform you that I have not yet received any communicationfrom the Govern-

ment, of the kind indicated in the Hon. Mr. Richardson's letter to Mr. Henderson, as quoted by you ;
but thatI shall be happy to forwardto the Government any representation you may desire to make-
on the subject. In the-meantime I have the honor to request that you will be pleased to complete
your contract without further delay.

I have, &c,
Messrs. Brogden and Sons,5, Queen Square, " I. E. Featheeston.

Westminster. Agent-General.

The Agent-General to Messrs. Beogden and Sons.
7, Westminster Chambers, Victoria Street, Westminster, S.W.,

Gentlemen,— 28th May, 1873.
Since writing my letter of yesterday, the only Despatch from the New Zealand Government

relating to your emigrationcontract (which had been mislaid) has been found.
The Despatch is dated the 23rd November, 1872, and covers the correspondence that took place

between Mr. James Brogden and the Government in New Zealand, with reference to your emigration
contract of the 27th June, 1872.

The Minister for Immigration, in a letter dated the 2nd November, 1872, says, iv reply to Mr.
James Brogden's letter of the 28th October, 1872, " I have to express to you the regret of the
Government that, after the gravest consideration, they find themselves unable to meet your views so
far as to relieve the firm from their liabilities in connection with the conduct of immigration under the
agreementreferred to ; but 1 may state that, so far as regardsmodificationsin the terms of thecontract
as respects future operations, favourable consideration will be given to any suggestion or recommenda-
tion which may be made by the Agent-General, with whom, upon the subject, your firm are invited to
place themselvesin immediate communication."

It will thus be seen that, with regard to the past, my hands are absolutely tied ; and that as you
liave made no proposals for modifications in the terms of the contract as respects future operations, I
have no alternative but to call upon you to complete the contractwithoutfurther delay.

I have, &c,
Messrs. John Brogden and Sons, 5, Queen Square, I. E. Featherston,

AVestminster. Agent-General.

Messrs. Beogden and Sons to the Agent-Geneeal.
Mir,— 5, Queen Square, Westminster, S.W., 12th June, 1873.

At the invitation of the Minister, the Hon. G. Maurice O'Korke, conveyed to our Mr. James
Brogden, in New Zealand,by "letter of 2nd November, 1872,and in compliance with your letterof 27th
May last, we address you on the subject of the agreement of 27th June, 1872,between the Governor
of New Zealandand ourselves, relative to the promotionof immigration into the Colony.

The negotiations on this subject commenced, as you willremember, in New Zealand, between Mr.
James Brogden and the Ministry there, and the continuance of them wasrelegated to you and the
members of our firm in England. At that time the postal arrangementsfrom the Colony were very
irregular, and we received intimationfrom our firm that the subject was so remitted to us, but without
any further particulars. You will doubtless remember that the draft agreement for emigration, which
had been discussed in the Colony, was handed to us by you, and you informed us that it had in fact
very nearly been signed by our Mr. James Brogden, but at the last moment he had declined to take
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the responsibility, and so the subject was remitted home. At the same time yon urged us with so
great pressureto commence sendingout emigrants, that even before any agreementwas madewith you
we had already sent out aconsiderable number, and were actively at work in the necessary organiza-
tionin different parts of thecountry.

AYe wish here to observe thatwe had no desire to enter into this undertaking: it was at the request
of the Government in New Zealand, and of yourself here, that wo did so; and from the first we
informed you that we looked for no profit, but only sought to be covered against any loss. The terms
we sought to arrange with you were similar in principle to those negotiated with Mr. Vogel in England
for the No. 1 contract, and required that we should keep accurate accounts of the moneys expended
and of the repayments received from the emigrants, that at the expiration of the time the accounts
should be adjusted and settled upon the basjs of repaying actual outlay.

AYe sent out emigrants in several of the early ships, as we supposed, upon this understanding, and
informed our firm in New Zealand that there would be therefore no necessity to consider, in settling
the prices of work, any cost or loss arising from the emigration. To this you objected that there was
no finality in such an agreement, and it was with reluctauce, and only on your distinct assuranco that
tho terms subsequently arranged wouldfully cover us against any loss, that we signed the agreement.
We could notbut remember, also, your statement that the agreement, with higher charges against us,
was on the point of being signed in New Zealand.

The terms to be charged to tho emigrants, the form of agreement with them, also of the promissory
notes to be taken from them, and, in fact, all details were, from time to time, discussed with and
approved by you.

These terms bound us to repay you, by instalments, £10 of the passage money,with interest; and
entitled us to charge, in addition to any other advanceswe might make, £15 to the emigrants, and to
deduct a portion of the amount weeklyfrom their wages. In the mode ofexecution and witnessing of
these agreements and promissory notes, we acted entirely upon the advice and information of either
yourselfor the Government emigration agent, Mr. Carter.

The difference between tho £10 you charged us and the £15 we were to charge the emigrants
being, iv fact, the only margin to set against any loss that might arise through delinquenciesor misfor-
tunes, and this you assured us would be amply sufficient to do so. We never desired to make any
profit out of the emigration,but we certainly relied upon your assurance that this margin was sufficient
to protect us against any loss.

AYe had no knowledge that in those same ships you were intending to send out other emigrants on
different terms, requiring from them very much less repayment for their passage money than was
required from our emigrants ; and althoughthe latterrequired help in removing from their homes to
the ships, and also for their kit and clothing, yet that was given from our firm and not from tho
Government: so that in what the Government had to provide, viz., the passage money, there was a
marked disadvantage to the extent ofa third or one-half of the passage money to our emigrants, as
compared with the Government emigrants.

There is no doubt that during the voyage these facts always became known, and created a feeling
of disappointment and dissatisfaction, which has resulted in a very disastrous defeat of the whole
object, to us, of this emigration. The men, as soon as they landed, mostly deserted, dispersed them-
selves overthe Colony, and refused to work for us, saying they had been ill-treated and over-reached,
and blamed us for what is, in fact, thearrangement forced upon us by you.

AYe have said in the commencement of this letter that we only entered upon this subject at the
urgent request of the New Zealand Government, and manifestly with the desire to provide labour for
the public works to be entrusted to us, so that those works might proceed rapidly without creating a
great disturbancein the question of labour in the other industries in the Colony. AYe have sent out
1,299 adult males, and according to our most recent advices we have 525 working for us ; the remainder

-are mostly remaining in the country engaged at other work, and we have been unable to recover any
appreciable amount of their promissory notes from them.

Thus the country has the advantage of the large number of selected men and theirfamilies for its
industries andrevenue, but, unfortunately for us, at our cost.

Again, we have been repeatedly informed by our firm in New Zealand, that when some of the
emigrants arrived, there were not public works entrusted to us sufficient to employ them, and we have
had either to find temporary employment for them, so as to keep our engagement to them, or to see
them leaving us for other work from which it is almost impossibleto recall them ; and our latestadvices
assure us that there is no necessity for further emigrants for the works given to us.

Under the circumstances as herein stated, we feel confident iv appealing to you for a reconsider-
ation of the terms as to the emigrants who have already been sent out by us, and we must certainly
be put upon an entirely differentfooting with reference to any further number.

AYe are not, and never were, desirous ofentering upon this kind of engagement,but believe, if the
Government urge it upon us, we could organize anew the emigration movement for the despatch of
considerable numbers ; but withreference to the past, we think we have a fair claim to afull reimburse-
ment of any moneys we have paid in connection with this matter, and a release from the notes signed
by us.

Your emigrationcirculars show that you have found it quite necessary, in order to keep up the
ilow of emigration, and to put yourself on a level with other countries who have active agencies here
for similar objects, to give a very great modificationof the terms you formerly demanded even from the
Government emigrants; and the promissory note for £10 which is now all you demand from the
emigrants, gives you no greater security than what we imagined we had received. AYe shall be glad to
give you the documents we have received from the emigrants, applying their respective amounts pra
rata to your passage money and our actual advances, and we think you ought to be satisfied in our case
with what you arenow satisfied with from any casual applicant.

We have, &c,
The Hon. I. E. Featherston, John Beogden and Sons.

Agent-General for New Zealand.
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Extbact from Letter from Ageni-General, dated 10th July, 1873.. . . "Itwill be seenthat the amount ofpromissory notes givenby emigrants to Messrs. Brogden
is £39,874 13s. 4d.; that the sum paid by Messrs. Brogden on account of the emigrants is £11,411
Bs. 9d.; and that the Government hold Messrs. Brogden's promissory notes to the amount of £18,240.
To meet Messrs. Brogdon's debt to the Government, and to reimburse them these advances to the
emigrants, a sum of £29,651 Bs. 9d. would have to be recoveredfrom theemigrants. If, as I understand,
525 of the emigrants are employed by the Messrs. Brogden, it appearsto me that there ought not to be
any great difficulty in recovering this amount, especially if the Government co-operated with Messrs.
Brogden; but of course the Government arealone able to form a sound opinion on the matter.

I have, &c,
I. E. Feathebston.

Messrs. Brogden and Soys to the Agent-General.
Sib,— 5, Queen Square, Westminster, S.W., 10th July, 1873.

In further explanation ofour letter of the 12th June last, we have the honorto submit to you
a statement showing the total amount of the promissory notes we have taken from the emigrants sent
outby us, divided into the respective items of—

£ s. d. £ s. d.
Passage money account (A) ... ... ... ... ... 28,463 5 0
Ship's kit ... ... ... ... 1,791 15 0
Outfit, advances for railway fares, dock dues,

medical examination ... ... ... 9,019 13 9-— 11,411 8 9

£39,874 13 9

Against the item A for passage money we have given our promissory notes to you for £18,240,
and we have received from the emigrants, according to our last advices, £1,007 18s. Bd.

What we intend to propose to you in the last paragraph of our letter is, that we should be relieved
of our promissory notes, and should transfer to the G-overnment of New Zealand all the emigrants'
promissory notes for the remaining sums due upon them, to enable the Government to collect the
amounts. As the moneys are received they should be applied in reduction pro rata of the amount
charged for passage money and our advances of £11,411 Bs. 9d. respectively.

Under this arrangementwe should incur a certain risk of loss from the deficiency of collection,
but we are willing to bear this in order to bring the matter to an amicable solution.

You will perceive, without our drawing your attention to it, that if we hadbeen allowed to adopt
the system you had in force, of thepayment for nominated emigrants in the case of thepeople sent out
by us, we have in fact paid as much as would have been required from us under that system, and it
appears that our Mr. James Brogden had that before him when he declined to sign the agreement.
And we have only further to remark that immediately on the arrival of the emigrants in the Colony,
we took them in charge, and the Government were put to no further expense with regard to them.

We have, &c,
John Beogden and Sons.

A Lettee from New Zealand.
The following is a copy of a letter from a young married couple who went out, with a number of other
persons from this neighbourhood, in the ship "Jessie Headman," for New Zealand, under engagement
to Messrs. Brogden and Son, to be employed on their railway works. We shall bo happy to be
favoured with a sight of any letter from New Zealand, and to publish extracts from the same if agree-
able to theparties who have received them:—

" Wellington, N.Z., 21st December, 1572.
"Mr Deae Paeents,—I justwrite you a line to let youknow thatwe aresafelylanded. We had a

pleasant voyage over. It is very hot here to day—it is the longest day. We came into port on the
16th. We got here sooner than any has ever done before. There has been one ship out 130 days and
not arrived yet; it lost its mainmast, and it has got in somewhere to have repairs. There was a ship
arrived a few days before us. # * * We had one death,—it was a little boy; he was ill before he
came. There were five confinements on the ship. * * * We are thankful we had such a good
voyage. Beer is the only dear thing here, it is sixpence a pint. We are not able to give you our
address yet. I will write again as soon as we are settled. We have heard of some situations, we are
expecting to hear from one. There is plenty of work herefor any one that likes. George has been to
work at six shillings a day and rations found. We shall go to service : they are giving sixty to seventy
pounds a year for married people with one child. Servants areso few, single girls getfifteen shillings
a week, and all found them. They find everything for married people. I hope youare as wellas we
are. George says he is very glad he came. We talk about you all at home. Give our love to all.
Prom your dear children,

" Geoege and Jane Gaekett."
Addressed to Mrs. James Tyler, Eush-green, Denham, Bucks, Old England.

NEW ZEALAND RAILWAYS.
To Agricultural Labourers.—Messrs. John Brogden and Sons, Contractors, 5, Queen Square,

Westminster, are prepared to take out strong healthy men of the above class to New Zealand, to be
employed on the public works. A proportion of married men and their families will also be taken.
Terms (for those who apply at once) as follows:—
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Messrs. Brogden and Sons will pay the whole passage money from London to New Zealand, to be

repaid by deductions from the wages in New Zealand, spread overa considerable time. "Work will be
provided from the day of landing, for at least two years, at wages not less than five shillings per day.

Prices of provisions in New Zealand:—Beef, 3d. to sd. per lb.; Butter, 6d. to 9d. per lb. ;Mutton, 2d. to 3d. per lb.; Potatoes, |d. per lb.
Further particulars and forms of application may be had of

0

Notice to Applicants foe Employment.

5, Queen Square, "Westminster.
The class of men now required are bond fide navvies and labourers accustomed to out-door work.
In order to prevent unnecessary trouble to applicants, answers must be written opposite to the sub-
joined questions, and this slip returned to us before the full form of application can be sent. If the
answers to these questions appear satisfactory,the terms upon which we are prepared to make engage-
ments willbe forwarded, but no reply will be sent in cases where the applicants are ineligible.

John Beogden and Sons.
Questions to be answered.

Name? Full address ? Where born ? What is your age ? Present occupation ? How long so
employed ? Former occupation (if any) ? How long so employed ? Married, single, or widower?
If married, Christian name and ago of wife ? Christian names and agesof children (ifany) ? Males :
Ages. Females: Ages.

Conditions under which Messrs. John Beogden and Sons (the employers) enter into engagements
to employ, in New Zealand, bondfide Navvies and Labourers (the employed) in the construction
of the Government Eailways, and also to grant them Assisted Passages to the Colony.

The employed enter into an agreement with the employers to work for them exclusively for such
period as is mentioned below.

2. The rate ofwages of the employed are to be agreed on from time to time, or settled by some
person to be appointed by the Governor of the Colony of New Zealand, but not to be less than five
shillings per day of ten hours.

3. The employers will pay the passage money of the employed to New Zealand.
4. The employed to give the employers promissory notes for their passage money and expenses,

payable to the employers or order on demand.
5. The employers to be at liberty to retain from the wages of the employed one-fifth of their

amount, or any other portion that may be arranged for, until the promissory notes are paid, and for
payment thereof.

6. Until thepromissory notes are fully paid, the employed will work for the employers, unless
released from this obligation, or unless they shall have so worked, for two years.

7. Whenever the promissory notes are fully paid, the employed arefreed from their obligation
to work for the employers.

8. The employers will provide the employed with work as navvies or labourers or other like
employment in New Zealand, on the terms herein mentioned, for a term of two years,except the right
to be so employed has been forfeited by any of the means next mentioned.

9. All rights of the employed to continued work will be, in the option of the employers, forfeited
by their incompetency or incapacity, insubordination, neglect or non-performance of duty, in-
temperance, breach of any law, or other misconduct, and thereupon the unpaid balance of the
promissory notes will be payable.

10. The employed are to obey all lawful orders of the employers or their agents, and at the
employers' expense to proceed to any parts of New Zealand, as directed, for the purposes of their
work.

5, Queen Square, Westminster, S.W. John Beogden axd Sons.
I hereby acknowledge that I understand the aboveconditions, and agree to fulfil them.

Signature
Address
Date
AVitness

Notice to Emigbants.—Ship's Outfit.
If you are prepared to pay for the government kit (which includes the requisite mattrasses,
bedclothes, utensils, &c.) at the rate of twenty shillings each adult, the amountshould be forwarded
to this office by return of post. If you are unable to do so, we will advance the amount for you.

Clothing.
It is expected that each applicant will endeavour to provide himself and familywith their clothing

All clothes now in wear will be very useful for the voyage.
If you should require some assistance to enable you to complete your clothing requirements, we

will make arrangements for supplying you, when in London, with the deficiency. We cannot under-
take to provide emigrants with the whole of their clothing outfit, but are willing to furnish the men
with their working clothes and boots, if they should require such aid; and will further assist their
wives with a pair of boots and a few yards of flannel, calico, linsey, and print, for themselves and
children; but the children's shoes, socks, and exterior clothing must be provided by the parents.
You must not expect a large supply of clothing from us, especially as interest will be chargeable on
your account, and we wish to reduce the amount of your liability as much as possible.
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List ofArticles wanted in addition to those which you can provide. (Fill in the number opposite each
Article.)

For MEN [Please state your height and width of chest all round]—6 shirts, coloured twill; 2
under flannels ; 6 pairs of stockings ; 2 blue guernseys ; 1 pair of shoes, water-tight [State the size
or length in inches of boots now in wear] ; 1 reefer coat; 2 mole waistcoats ; 2 mole trowsers; 4s
whiteduck slops [State the measurement in inches of your trowsers band all round the top ofyour
trowsers].

For "Women.—(s chemises; 1 flannel petticoat; G pairs of stockings, size No. ; 2 pairs strong
shoes [Name the size or the length in inches of boots nowin wear] ; 12 yards of grey linsey for gown ;
9 yards of print for gown; 4 yards of glazed lining; 4 yards of unbleached calico ; 16 yards of white
calico; Gyards offlannel. [Do you wish, in addition to the above, for our married women's parcel, con-
taining 12 yards linsey, 9 yards print, 3 yards lining, 1 yard skirt lining, 4 reels of cotton, 3 packets of
needles,buttons, hooks and eyes, pins, thimbles, &c, &c]

Railway J?are to London.
It would save us considerable time and trouble if each emigrant would contrive to pay the rail-

way fare to London. If you are unable to do so, send us the following information, that we may-
arrange for payment:—

Name of Railway Station (Departure).
Name of Station Master.
Price of Third-class Ticket to London.
Number of Ticketsrequired.

5, Queen Square, Westminster, S.W. John Beoqdenand Sons.
Messrs. John Brogden and Sons, Westminster, S.W.

Gentlemen,—lf you will furnish me with the above, in addition to my passage money, and
will alsopay for my medical examination, dock dues on my luggage, cartage, porterage, and all other
incidental expenses in London up to embarkation, I will give you a promissory note for the amount,
with five per cent, interest addedthereto; and 1 herebyengage to work for you, on your New Zealand
railway works, until the said promissory note is fully paid. I also hereby agree to sign an under-
taking, that if I fail to embark as agreed, I will repay you one-half of the passage money, together with
any other expenses which have been incurred on my behalf.

Signature
Address
Date
Signature of Witness
Address ofWitness

Conditions under which Messrs. JohnBrogden and Sons (the employers) areprepared to enter into
engagements to employ, in New Zealand, bonajide Navvies and Labourers (the employed) in the
construction of the Government Railways, and also to grant them Assisted Passages to the
Colony.

The employed enter into an agreement with the employers to work for them exclusively for
such period as is mentioned below.

2. The rate of wages of theemployed are to be agreed on from time to time, or settled by some
person to be appointed by the Governor of the Colony of New Zealand, but not to be less than five
shillingsper day of ten hours.

3. The employers will pay the passage money of the employed to New Zealand.
4. The employed to give the employers promissory notes for their passage moneyand expenses,

payable to the employers or order on demand.
5. The employers to be at liberty to retain from the wages of the employed one-fifth of their

amount, or any other portion that may be arranged for, until the promissory notesare paid, and for
payment thereof.

6. Until the promissory notes are fully paid, the employed will work for the employers, unless
released from this obligation, or unless they shall have worked, for two years.

7. Whenever the promissory notes arefully paid, the employed are freed from theirobligation to
work for the employers.

8. The employers will provide the employed with work as navvies or labourers or other like
employment in New Zealand, on the terms herein mentioned, for a term of two years,except the right
to be so employed has been forfeited by any of the means next mentioned.

9. All rights of the employed to continue work will be, in the option of the employers, forfeited
by their incompetency or incapacity, insubordination, neglect or non-performance of duty, intem-
perance, breach of any law, or other misconduct, and thereupon the unpaid balance of the promissory
notes will be payable.

10. The employed are to obey all lawful orders of the employers or their agents, and at the
employers' expenseto proceed to anyparts of New Zealand, as directed, for the purposes of their work.

11. The applicant will receive notice thathe has been approved of. He will thenforthwith receive
a " Contract Ticket," naming the ship iv which he is to sail, and the time and place at which he is to
embark.

12. The filling up the accompanying " Form of Application" does not, nor does even the
signature of the " Certificate," entitle the applicant to an engagement; and he is warned against
leaving his enrployment, or making any preparation for emigrating, before he has received his " Con-
tract Ticket." Replies arenot sent when applicants are ineligible.

13. The employed must pay all their own expenses to the port, and up to the period of
embarkation.
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14. If any false statement or false signature shall be found in the form of application or the
certificates, or if the applicant shall fail to embark at the time and place required : or if, upon appear-
ing at the place of embarkation, any applicant shall bo found to have any infectious disorder, or any
bodily or mental defect, contrary to the statement in the application, such applicant willnotbs allowed
to embark.

Note.—These conditionsare intended to apply only for a short time, and aresubject to modification
unless immediately accepted.

Skip's Regulations.
15. Provisions, Sfc.—Provisions,medical attendance, cooking, and cooking utensils are supplied on

board without charge to the employed.
The following is the dietary scale for each adultper week. Women receive same rations as men ;

children between one and twelveyears of age, one-half :—

Children between one and four yearsof age to receive preserved meat instead of salt meat every
day, and in addition to the articles to which they are entitled by the above-written scale, a quarter of a
pint of preserved milk daily, and 8 ozs. of arrowroot or sago weekly. Children under one year
3 pints of water daily : and if above four months old, a quarter of apint of preserved milk daily, and
3 ozs. of preserved soup, 12 ozs. biscuit, 4 ozs. oatmeal, 4 ozs. sago or arrowroot,8 ozs. flour, 4 ozs.
rice, and 10ozs. sutrar weekly.

16. No one will bo allowed to embark with a less quantity of clothing for each person than,—
For M/ile.t.—6 shirts, G pairs of stockings, 2 warmflannel or Guernsey shirts, 2 pairs of new shoes,

2 complete suits of strong exterior clothing.
For Females. —G chemises, 2 warm and strong flannel petticoats, G pairs of stockings, 2 pairs of

strong shoes, 2 strong gowns, one of which must be warm.
For Children.—7 shirts or chemises, 4 warm flannel waistcoats, 1 warm cloak or outside coat, 6

pairs of stockincrs, 2 pairs of strong shoos, 2 complete suits of exteriorclothing.
17. Outfit, $'c. —The requisite mattrasses, bed-clothes, soap, and utensils will be provided by the

Government at the following rates, which sums must be paid by the employed before they can receive
their contract tickets, viz. :—For singlewomen, 20s. each ; single men, 20s. each ; marriedcouples and
children, 20s. each adult.

IS. The employed will be dividedinto three classes, and berthed in three separate compartments
in the ship : Ist. Single men, that is,—all unmarried males above twelveyears of age ; 2nd. Married
couples, with children under 12 years; 3rd. Single women, that is,—all unmarried females above
twelveyears.

The single womenwill be placed underthe superintendence of a matron.
19. Luf/ffa/je, Sfc.—All luggage should be distinctly marked in paint with the name of the

passenger and the ship ; and boxes containing articleswhich will be required on the voyage should have
the word " "Wanted " written conspicuously upon them. The whole quantity of luggage for each adult,
allowed free of charge, is 10 cubic feet measurement, and this maybe either brought on board by the
employed on the day of embarkation, or forwardedto the docks previously. Luggage in excess of this
quantity will be chargeablewith freight at a rate not exceedingIs. per cubic foot. Notice of the
number and sizes of the packages containing such extraluggage should be sent to the shipping agents
at least five days before the day of embarkation. The employed must present themselves at the ship
on the day named for embarkation on the contract ticket. As all boxes areput into the hold of the
ship, and those marked " Wanted " can be got at about once a month during the voyage, the employed
should keep a supply of linen for immediate use in a canvas bag, which he can keep in his berth.

5, Queen Square, Westminster,London, S.W., John Bbogden and Sons.
March, 1872.

N.JB.—No notice will be taken of any application, nor will any answer bo returned to any
inquiries, until the "Form of Application" is returned to this office, properly filled up and signed.
Special arrangementswill be made in the case ofmarriedcouples and children.

Conditions under which Messrs. John Bbooden and Sons (the employers) are prepared to enter into
engagements to employ, in New Zealand, bond Jldc Nattiks and Labourers (the employed) in
the construction of the Government Bailways, and also to grant them Assisted Passages to the
Colony.

TnE employed enter into an agreement with the employers to work for them exclusively for such
period as is mentioned below.

4—l. 5.
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2. The rate of wages of the employed are to be agreed onfrom time to time, or settled by some
person to bo appointed by the Governor of the Colony of New Zealand, but not to be less than five
shillings per day often hours.

3. The employers will pay thepassage moneyof the employed to New Zealand.
4. The employed to give the employers promissory notes for their passage moneyand expenses,

payable to the employers or order on demand.
5. The employers to be at liberty to retain from the wages of the employed one-fifth of their

amount, or any other portion that may be arranged for, until the promissory notes are paid, and for
payment thereof.

6. Until thepromissory notesare fully paid, the employed will work for the employers (unless
released from this obligation, or unless they shall have so worked) for two years.

7. Whenever thepromissory notes arefully paid, the employed are freed from their obligationto
work for the employers.

8. The employers will provide the employed with work as«navvies or labourers or other like
employment in New Zealand, on the terms herein mentioned, for a term of two years, except the
right to be so employed has been forfeited by any of the meansnext mentioned.

9. All rights of the employed to continued work willbe, in the option of the employers, forfeited
by their incompctency or incapacity, insubordination, neglect or non-performance of duty, intemperance,
breach of any law, or other misconduct, and thereupon the unpaid balance of thepromissory notes
will be payable.

10. The employed are to obey all lawful orders of the employers or their agents, and at the
employers' expenseto proceed to any parts of New Zealand, as directed, for the purposes of their
work.

I hereby acknowledge that I understand the above conditions, and agree to fulfil them, and to sail
for New Zealand on or after the clay of

Signature
Address
Date

Medical Certificate.
I hereby certify that I have examined the above-named applicant [and his wife and children] ;

that to thebest of my knowledge and belief, he [she, they] are in good health, and free from any bodily
or mental defect likely to impair his [.her, their] efficiency as labourers. 1 also certify that he [she,
they] have all had the small-pox, or been vaccinated, and is [are] entirely free from any disorder
usually considered infectious or contagious.

(To be signed by a Physician or Surgeon.) Address and date.
N.B.—Special arrangementswill be made in the case of marriedcouples and children.

Supplied by John Brogden and Sons, 5, Queen Square, Westminster, S. W., to
Vxhridge.

Ship's outfit, £1; railway fare and expenses, ; passage, £15; medical examination, 2s. 6d.
Men's clothing, viz.:— shirts, coloured twill, at 3s. Gd.; shirts, colouredflannel, at (ss. 6d.;

under flannels, at 3s. Gd.; pairs of stockings, at 25.; blue Guernseys, at 7s. 6d. ; pair of
shoes, water-tight, at 20s. ; pair shoes, balmoral, at 18s. ; reefer coat, at 16s. 6d. ; mole waist-
waistcoat, at 135.; mole trousers, at 12s. 6d.; white duck slops, at 45.; canvas bag, Is. Gd.
Total,

Women's clothing, viz :—■ chemises, at 2s. Gd.; flannel petticoats, at Gs. ; pairs of stockings,
size No. ,at Is. ; strong shoes, at 7s. Gd.; yards of grey linsey for gown, at Is. ; yards of
print, at Bd.; yards of glazed lining, at 4d. ; yards of unbleached calico, at 4|d.; yards of white
calico, at 7d.; yards of white flannel, at ; yards of red flannel, at Is. Gd. Married women's
parcel, containing 6 reels of cotton, 3 packets of needles, buttons, hooks and eyes, pins, thimbles,
tape, hair pins, &c, at 2s. 6d.; cauvasbag, at Is. Gd.

Incidental expenses, viz., fare to docks, cartage of luggage, porterage, dock dues, shipping
expenses, &c, . Cash on board, . Interest, one year, from 12th November, 1872, and
stamps, £
£ a. d. sterling. London, 12th November, 1872.

On demand I promise to pay to Messrs. John Brogden and Sons, or order, the sum of
£ a. d., for value received.

Witness Signature

Feee Passages.

I consider that the instructions sent to the Agent-General by Mr. Waterhouseon the 23rd November,
1872, practically though not explicitly authorizedthe granting of free passages. The Agent-General
was then instructed torelieve immigrants of the cost of reaching the port, and also the cost of bedding
and of outfit. Mr. Waterhouse states further, " I must again impress upon you that the speedy in-
troduction of a suitablebody of immigrants is the first consideration: the expense must be regarded
of secondary importance, so long as it remains within reasonable limits." And again with regard to
relieving the emigrants of expense, " The ultimate decision as to the course to be adopted must still
rest with yourself; but you will understand that the Government desires that you should feel yourself
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unfettered in the exercise of a wise discretion ia pursuance of the ultimate object of a large and
immediate addition to the population of the Colony." The regulations granting free passages were
issued on the 10th March, andrevoked on the 17th of the same month. The Agent-General's telegram
of sth March was replied to on the 12th April, authorizing Agent-General to dispense with all
■charges he thought proper.

Bbogden's Contract.
The Government were quite aware of Messrs. Brogden's application to berelieved from the liability
"connected with their contract, when Mr. Waterhouse's Memorandumof 23rd November, authorizing
immigrants to be relieved of certain if not all charges, was despatched. Mr. Waterhouse on the same
date, 23rd November, referred Messrs. Brogden's application tc bo released from their contract
iiabilities,to the Agent-General.

By Authority : GbobubDidebuuy, GovernmentPrinter, Wellington.—lß73.

IPrice Is. 3d.]
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